%’; - s

TRAFEORD
COUNCIL

AGENDA PAPERS FOR

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date: Thursday, 26 September 2019

Time: 6.30 pm
Place: Committee Room 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, M32
OTH.
AGENDA Pages

ATTENDANCES
To note attendances, including Officers, and any apologies for absence.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)

Any other item or items (not likely to disclose "exempt information") which, by
reason of special circumstances (to be specified), the Chairman of the
meeting is of the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of
urgency.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public questions submitted in
writing to Democratic Services (democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk) by 4pm
on the working day prior to the meeting. Questions must be within the remit of
the Committee or be relevant to items appearing on the agenda and will be
submitted in the order in which they were received

MINUTES 1-14

To receive and, if so determined, to agree as a correct record the Minutes of



10.

Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 26 September 2019

the meetings held on 27" June 2019 and on 24™ July 2019

PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES FOR MENTAL HEALTH CONDITIONS - 15-44
SPOTLIGHT ON PROVISION IN TRAFFORD

TRAFFORD SUICIDE PREVENTION ACTION PLAN AND STRATEGY 45 - 74
AN UPDATE ON WORK TO TACKLE PERIOD POVERTY IN TRAFFORD 75-78
HEALTH SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

To follow

EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (REMAINING ITEMS)

Motion (Which may be amended as Members think fit):

That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the
remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of disclosure of

“‘exempt information” which falls within one or more descriptive category or
categories of the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, as amended by

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and
specified on the agenda item or report relating to each such item respectively.

SARA TODD
Chief Executive

Membership of the Committee

Councillors Dr. K. Barclay (Chair), S. Taylor (Vice-Chair), A. Akinola, Dr. S. Carr,
Mrs. D.L. Haddad, B. Hartley, J. Lloyd, S. Thomas, D. Acton (ex-Officio) and
D. Western (ex-Officio).

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Fabiola Fuschi,
Tel: 0161 912 2019
Email; fabiola.fuschi@trafford.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on Wednesday, 18 September 2019 by the Legal and
Democratic Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road,
Stretford, Manchester, M32 OTH

WEBCASTING

This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s
website and / or YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil



https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil

Health Scrutiny Committee - Thursday, 26 September 2019

The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt
items.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for
webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email
democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please
contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you
intend to do this or have any other queries.


mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 1

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 JUNE 2019

PRESENT

Councillor Dr. K. Barclay (in the Chair).

Councillors S. Taylor (Vice-Chair), A. Akinola, Dr. S. Carr, B. Hartley, J. Lloyd,
S. Thomas and D. Acton (ex-Officio)

In attendance

Karen Ahmed Director of All Age Commissioning

Diane Eaton Interim Statutory Director Adult’s Social Care

Helen Gollins Consultant in Public Health

Sara Radcliffe Corporate Director of Commissioning

Tim Rhodes Principal Solicitor and Interim Statutory Scrutiny Officer
Richard Spearing Trafford Integrated Network Director

Jane Wagstaff Public Health Project Support Officer

Fabiola Fuschi Democratic and Scrutiny Officer

1. ATTENDANCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Western, Councillor
Mrs.Haddad and Heather Fairfield from Trafford HealthWatch.

2. CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE
RESOLVED that the appointment at Annual Council of Councillors Dr. Barclay and
Taylor to Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Health Scrutiny Committee for
Municipal Year 2019/20 be noted.

3. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE
RESOLVED that the membership of the Health Scrutiny Committee for Municipal
Year 2019/20 as determined by Full Council at its Annual Meeting on 22" May
2019 be noted.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE
RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference of the Health Scrutiny Committee for
Municipal Year 2019/20, as determined by Full Council at its annual Meeting on
22" May 2019 be noted.

5. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no public questions received.

6. MINUTES



Document Pack Page 2

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Committee meeting held on
7" March 2019 be approved as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Akinola declared a personal interest at Items 10 and 13 by virtue of her
employment as an adult social care contractor.

Councillor Dr. Carr and Councillor Taylor declared a personal interest at most
items of today’s agenda by virtue of their employment with the NHS.

Councillor Lloyd declared a personal interest at most items on today’s agenda by
virtue of her previous position as a Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
during Municipal Year 2018/19.

URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)
There were no items of urgent business received.
SINGLE HOSPITAL SERVICE UPDATE

The Committee gave consideration to a progress report of the Deputy Programme
Director, Single Hospital Service, which informed of the latest position on the
planned acquisition by Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) of
North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH). This was one of the two projects
outlined in the report which aimed to deliver the Single Hospital Service
Programme.

No representatives from the organisations involved with the Single Hospital
Service Programme could attend today’s meeting to present the report.

Members requested to see evidence of the benefits for patients of the merger of
the two hospitals. Members also enquired about the outcome of the meeting that
took place on 21% June 2019 between NHS Improvement Executive and MUF
Executive to determine whether the acquisition of North Manchester General
Hospital could move on to Business Stage Case. The Committee requested to see
the video about the merger produced by MUF for residents.

RESOLVED:
1. That the report be noted;
2. That the following information be provided to the Committee:

a. Evidence of benefits for patients of the merger of Central
Manchester University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and
University Hospital of South Manchester NHS Foundation Trust

b. Outcome of the meeting that took place on 21 June 2019 between
NHS Improvement Executive and MUF Executive to determine
whether the acquisition of North Manchester General Hospital could
move on to Business Stage Case;

c. Link to the video produced by MUF about the merger.

2



Document Pack Page 3

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

10. CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) ACTION PLAN

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Statutory Director of Adult’s
Services which outlined the progress against the action plan developed to address
the issues identified by the CQC inspection of the health and social care system in
Trafford in 2017 and the outcome of the CQC review in 2018.

The author of the report, accompanied by the Corporate Director of
Commissioning, the Trafford Integrated Network Director and the Director of All
Age Commissioning, was in attendance to present the information and to address
the enquiries of the Committee.

The result of the CQC inspection in 2017 had highlighted that health and social
care organisations in Trafford had to work as a system to address issues such as
delayed transfers of care from hospital to the community. Consequently, a number
of measures had been put in place to address the CQC recommendations.

The Urgent Care Control Room was introduced to prevent delays in hospital
discharges via the coordination between activities in the four hospital sites and
resources in the community. Discharge pathways were revised, early discharge
planning was put in place and work with the Third Sector was extended to support
hospital discharge and avoid unnecessary admissions. An Enhanced Home Care
Team and an extended Reablement Service were in operation to support people
to remain independent. These and other actions, detailed in the report, contributed
to improvements to the delayed transfer of care and this was reflected in the CQC
review in 2018. Therefore, it was proposed to close the action plan started in 2017
to move to the next phase which would focus on hospital admission prevention.

Members sought and received clarification on a number of points concerning
support for advanced care planning in the community and frailty screening,
progress with integrated response to support people in their homes, appointment
of a Community Flow Lead to address capacity and coordination in hospital
discharges, measures to mitigate waiting times for Community Reablement,
provision of Extra Care apartments at Limelight, current performance on delayed
transfers of care against other Local Authorities in England, resources to fund
implemented measures and development of a differently skilled workforce to
provide a wider range of support in people’s homes.

RESOLVED:
1. That the progress made to date and the closure of CQC Action Plan be
noted;
2. That the new targets for length of hospital stay be noted,;
3. That an update be presented in six months on admission avoidance and
intermediate care.



1.

12.

13.

Document Pack Page 4

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

TRAFFORD STRATEGIC SAFEGUARDING BOARD (TSSB) UPDATE

RESOLVED that Trafford Strategic Safeguarding Board’s annual report for
2018/19 be brought to a meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee following the
Board’s approval in October 2019.

NORTH WEST AMBULANCE SERVICES (NWAS) ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
STATISTICS

RESOLVED that the overview of the performance of the North West Ambulance
Service NHS Trust against national standards and the update on activities
undertaken in Trafford be noted.

RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE HOME QUALITY UPDATE

The Committee considered a report of the Director of All Age Commissioning
which provided an update in respect of the improvement work being undertaken in
residential and nursing care.

The author of the report, accompanied by the Interim Statutory Director of Adult’s
Services and the Corporate Director of Commissioning, was in attendance to
present the information and to address the enquiries of the Committee.

It was reported that the result of the latest Care Quality Commission (CQC)
inspection in April 2019 showed that the quality of care and nursing homes in
Trafford had improved by 18% in the last 12 months. Homes rated
“good/outstanding” were 77.22% of the total inspected homes and the first
“outstanding” home status had been achieved. The analysis of the North West
Association of Directors of Adults Social Services North West Branch showed that
the percentage of care homes in Trafford rated “good/outstanding” reduced with
the increase in the number of beds. This data was significant to plan
commissioning activities. Future initiatives contemplated developing links between
residents and young people in local schools and investment in training and
development to support members of staff with projects to improve residents’ oral
health and communication and consistency in the transition between community
care and hospital. Further initiatives to improve the quality of care were
highlighted.

The Committee sought clarification on the number of care and nursing homes in
Trafford “requiring improvement”. It was explained that, last year, five homes rated
‘inadequate” had been closed, consequently, 150 beds had been lost. This year,
two establishments were rated “inadequate” and those “requiring improvement”
had action plans in place. Members also enquired about the percentage of
residential and nursing homes with a charitable or private status. The Committee
discussed the process to determine the hourly rate for care workers and it was
explained that providers set the hourly rate independently from the annual
increase that the Council paid in line with inflation. It was explained that
contingency plans were in place for continuity of care. Members also queried the
rational for the self-assessment tool for care homes and it was explained that the



Document Pack Page 5

14.

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

data obtained was utilised with other processes, such as safeguarding and site
visits, to ensure quality of care.

RESOLVED:
1. That the progress made to date be noted;
2. An update be requested at six monthly intervals on quality within the
market.

AN OVERVIEW OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD STRUCTURE IN
TRAFFORD AND THE TRAFFORD AGE WELL PLAN

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Public Health which
gave an overview of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the three life course
boards: the Start Well Board, the Live Well Board and the Age Well Board.

The Consultant in Public Health and the Public Health Project Support Officer
attended the meeting to present the information and to address the enquiries of
the Committee.

It was reported that the Health and Wellbeing Board had been in place since 2013.
Its function was to develop a share understanding of local needs through the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), to support the development of strategies to

improve health and wellbeing of local population and to foster partnership working.

On the basis of the data gathered by the JSNA, five priorities were identified for
Trafford for 2019-25. These were: reducing the number of people who smoked or
used tobacco, reducing physical inactivity, reducing harm from alcohol, reducing
the impact of mental illness, improving cancer prevention and screening.

The remit of each of the life course boards was outlined. Each of them reported to
the Health and Wellbeing Board. The Mental Health Partnership sat alongside
these three boards and it was in the process of developing a mental health
strategy for Trafford.

It was explained that the Age Well Plan for Trafford was developed following
Greater Manchester being named as the first age-friendly city region in the UK in
March 2018. The plan was submitted to Greater Manchester Combined Authority
in March 2019 and Trafford itself was named as an age-friendly community by the
UK Centre for Ageing Better in May 2019.

Members queried the efficacy of current measures to reduce health inequalities,
considering that resources such as Sure Start Centres and Children Centres were
no longer in operation. It was explained that the structure in place focused on key
issues such as better start in life and education; through tools such as screening
work in the community, it was possible to identify groups that required intervention.
It was noted that, although the national context was difficult, different initiatives in
the community were ongoing to address long term goals through a collective
approach.



15.

16.

Document Pack Page 6

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

Members sought and received clarification on the Poverty Strategy which was
being developed; a workshop, led by Public Health and attended by several
partners, had taken place. The draft strategy would be brought to the Health and
Wellbeing Board in March 2020. Members asked for the draft to be brought to this
Committee after endorsement by the Health and Wellbeing Board. Members also
requested to be involved with Neighbourhood plans which looked at aspects of
JSNA and their links with communities and GPs in specific areas of Trafford.
Members also queried whether, within the Start Well Board’s work plan,
communication skills were included in the school readiness plans. It was explained
that there were place based plans and speech and language were prioritised.

RESOLVED
1. That the report be noted;
2. That the Poverty Strategy be shared with this Committee after its
endorsement by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

HEALTHWATCH TRAFFORD END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
REPORT 2018/19

RESOLVED that HealthWatch Trafford’s End of Year Performance and Impact
report 2018/19 be noted.

HEALTH SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

The members were presented with a draft work programme for 2019/20. This
document was prepared on the basis of the work that had been carried out by the
Committee during the previous municipal year.

Members noted the document and agreed that a further discussion was necessary
to ensure that the work plan for 2019/20 reflected the Council’s new corporate
priorities outlined in the new Corporate Plan, as well as the five health and
wellbeing priority topics identified via Trafford’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.
Members agreed to delegate the development of the work programme to the Chair
and Vice-Chair of the Committee. Therefore, a revised work programme for
2019/20 would be presented at the next meeting of the Committee in September
2019.

The Chairman informed the Committee that an extraordinary meeting would take
place on Wednesday 24" July 2019 to scrutinise the matters concerning the
Altrincham Hub development.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee meet to
develop the work programme for 2019/20; this would be brought to the
meeting in September 2019 for approval,

2. That it be noted that an extraordinary meeting of the Health Scrutiny
Committee take place on Wednesday 24™ July 2019 to scrutinise the
matters concerning the Altrincham Hub development.



Document Pack Page 7

Health Scrutiny Committee
27 June 2019

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and finished at 7.50 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 9

17.

18.

19.

20.

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24 JULY 2019

PRESENT

Councillor Dr. K. Barclay (in the Chair).

Councillors S. Taylor (Vice-Chair), A. Akinola, Mrs. D.L. Haddad, B. Hartley, J. Lloyd,
D. Acton (ex-Officio) and D. Western (ex-Officio)

In attendance

Martyn Pritchard Accountable Officer NHS Trafford and Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG)

Rebecca Demaine Associate Director of Primary Care, Trafford CCG

Fabiola Fuschi Democratic and Scrutiny Officer, Trafford Council

Also Present

Councillors Coggins and Welton

Also in attendance

Heather Fairfield Healthwatch Trafford

ATTENDANCES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dr. Carr and Councillor
Thomas.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Taylor, Western and Akinola declared a general interest in so far as
any matter related to their employment.

Councillor Lloyd declared a general interest in so far as any matter related to her
previous position as Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing.

URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)

There were no items of urgent business received.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

The following public question was submitted via email:

“I have a question for the Scrutiny Committee . ...

| have seen this Committee in action under three Chair leaders over time. | am

regularly present at all CCG Board meetings over a long time with questions and
some success in pressing for change/ improvements. | have wider involvement



Document Pack Page 10

Health Scrutiny Committee
24 July 2019

and interests in Health and Social Care, in what is currently a very confusing
plethora of activity out there whichever way you look.

On Scrutiny and the reasons why this Committee exists, it does not get to "good
or outstanding” in my considered view and from a lot of experience of the "critical
friend" role in action on issues. With the subject tonight, it seems to be in the
catch up zone, discussing a major problem in which it has no real authority to
decide and pronounce. | am well familiar with the background. Do you agree that
under the new "annual scrutiny leadership cycle", it has to sharpen its teeth and
forget the "friend" in the critical phrase, with this agenda problem?”

The Chairman acknowledged the question and explained that a detailed response
would be sent to the questioner in due course.

The Chairman added that the Health Scrutiny Committee derived its powers from
The Health and Social Care Act 2001 and the National Health Service Act 2006
and its main functions were to hold to account the decision makers in relation to
health and well-being issues in Trafford and to strengthen the voice of local
people, ensuring that their needs and experiences were considered as an integral
part of the commissioning and delivery of health services and that those services
were effective and safe.

A Health Scrutiny protocol was in place to outline working arrangements between
the Health Scrutiny Committee, key NHS partners, HealthWatch Trafford and the
Older Person’s Champion on how best deliver the duties placed on them by
legislation. However, the Committee was constrained in its actions by the
legislation.

The Chairman informed the Committee that Mrs. Judie Collins, Chair of the
Altrincham and Bowdon Civic Society wished to make a statement concerning this
evening’s agenda item. Three minutes were allocated to Mrs. Collins to present
her information.

Mrs. Collins addressed the Committee and explained that, at the beginning of the
process concerning the development of the Altrincham Hub, there had been no
adequate public consultation over the hospital’s future. This had been confirmed
by a decision of the High Court, following judicial review. Subsequently, the
developers had started engaging with residents and the Altrincham and Bowdon
Civic Society had been able to express its concern with regard to maintaining the
heritage of the building. Currently, regular meetings with CCG’s project managers
were taking place. Mrs. Collins added that the Altrincham and Bowdon Civic
Society would like to see the NHS Property Services taking part with the CCG in
the lesson learned exercise regarding this matter.

The Committee sought and received clarification from Mrs. Collins with regard to
the involvement of the Altrincham and Bowdon Civic Society with the shortlisting of
developers, the impact on the community of the building not being fully utilised and
the feedback from patients’ groups on its destination to library services and GP
Practices.



Document Pack Page 11

21.

Health Scrutiny Committee
24 July 2019

The Chairman thanked Mrs. Collins for her contribution to the meeting of the
Committee.

THE ALTRINCHAM HUB DEVELOPMENT

The Committee gave consideration to a report of the Accountable Officer for NHS
Trafford and Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) which informed of the the
background of the Altrincham Hub development and the CCG’s response to the
outcome of the independent review of the Hub, commissioned by the Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership.

The author of the report, accompanied by the Associate Director of Primary Care
Trafford CCG, attended the meeting to present the information and to address the
enquiries of the Committee.

In May 2015, a full business case had been approved by the CCG Governing
Body to locate a health care hub on the site of the former Altrincham Hospital
which was owned by a local developer. However, due to historic governance
processes and lack of appropriate challenge of the business case, the project led
to expending of funds and resources that could have been saved.

The Accountable Officer explained that the independent report commissioned by
the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership on the Hub had been
published on 6" March 2019. The CCG had accepted the nine recommendations
listed in the report which urged the organisation to put in place measures to
ensure the efficient accomplishment of future projects of similar size and strategic
importance.

The Accountable Officer went on to explain that, in addition to addressing those
nine recommendations, the CCG also wanted to focus on the wider issues in the
review, such as ensuring that appropriate governance arrangements were in place
during the key decision making process, building a high performing Governing
Body able to appropriately challenge future schemes and identify risks and the
ability of management to deliver agreed actions. As a result, the responses to the
recommendations and the plans and processes put in place to address the wider
organisational issues were reviewed, internally, by the CCG’s Governing Body and
the Audit Committee and, subsequently, approved by the Greater Manchester
Health and Social Care Partnership.

The Accountable Officer also informed the Committee of the future use of the
Altrincham Hub and confirmed that the CCG had entered a legal agreement with
two GP Practices which would move in the near future from their existing buildings
into the hub, providing primary care services for over 24,000 residents. This would
be pivotal in securing the opening of a community pharmacy in the building. The
Accountable Officer also reported that conversations with the Council were
ongoing about the possibility of an integrated health and social care team located
in the Hub. The NHS Property Services was in conversation with commercial
organisations about the use of the third floor.



Document Pack Page 12

Health Scrutiny Committee
24 July 2019

The Committee sought reassurance from the CCG’s representatives that the
lesson learnt from these circumstances would lead to a more robust procurement
process and a clear audit trail of decision making within the organisation.
Members were informed that, as a consequence of the independent review and
the acceptance of its findings, the CCG had developed a three phase response
which had consisted in the review of CCG’s Governing Body’s constitution signed
off by NHS England, the assurance of effective scrutiny of decision making
through the revised Terms of Reference of committees and sub-committee within
the organisation and the review of all policies and procedures. The outcome of the
internal review also ensured that effective record keeping of decision making was
in place to comply with good governance standards as well as with openness and
transparency through publication of records.

Ward Members, who attended this evening’s meeting, highlighted the frustration of
residents about this matter, considering the current national and local context,
characterised by financial constraints and reduction in public spend. Ward
Members queried the function of the Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee with
regard to this issue and whether there was a lesson to be learnt by NHS England
on this matter. It was explained that the amount of information available to the
Health Scrutiny Committee had been limited. However, CCG’s processes had
changed and Members of the Council’'s Executive were being invited to attend
CCG’s meetings where discussions took place on the quality of services, their
performance and finance.

The Committee also queried the CCG agreement with NHS Property Services to
retain the financial risk of void space through an indemnity deed and the role of
NHS Property Services in this decision. It was explained that, currently, the yearly
cost to the CCG of not having tenants in the building was over £2 M. However, the
CCG was determined to work with partners to make the best of the building.

With regard to the future use of the building, Members asked what would be the
cost of converting the third floor into a commercial space. It was explained that the
third floor was already organised as an office space. However, the conversion cost
would be around £1.3M, should a different destination be decided.

The Committee raised questions regarding the lack of competitive procurement for
selecting a developer for the hub. It was explained that the CCG had now secured
the expertise of STAR Procurement; the management of large scale projects in
future would follow national standards of procurement.

Members requested to clarify the relationship between CCG and NHS England. It
was explained that, within the Devolution Agreement, Greater Manchester Health
and Social Care Partnership had to report to NHS England. CCG had quarterly
meeting with the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership
regarding the lesson learnt on the Hub development.

Members requested an update on progress against the CCG’s action plan at the
meeting of the Committee in November 2019. Members also asked to visit the site
with a member of the CCG to fully understand the potential use of spaces.



Document Pack Page 13

Health Scrutiny Committee
24 July 2019

In addition, Members requested to have access to agendas and minutes of the
CCG Governing Body’s meetings. It was explained that these were available on
line, on the Trafford CCG’s web-site.

RESOLVED:

1. That an update on the CCG Action Plan on the Altrincham Hub be
presented at the meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee on 8th
November 2019;

2. That members visit the Altrincham Hub building with a representative of the
CCG to fully understand the potential use of spaces;

3. That further information be provided by the CCG to the Committee with
regard to NHS England and NHS Property Services and their role in the
lesson learnt process and risk management.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and finished at 7.30 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 15

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 September 2019

Report for: Information

Report of: Ric Taylor, Lead Commissioner Mental Health &

Learning Disability, NHS Trafford CCG

Report Title

PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES FOR MENTAL HEALTH CONDITIONS -
SPOTLIGHT ON PROVISION IN TRAFFORD

Summary

Trafford’s Health Scrutiny Committee has requested a report explaining how
psychological therapy services are provided in Trafford, a request contextualised by
the Committee’s understanding that Trafford’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) for December 2017 showed only 1 in 10 of patients who had anxiety or
depression received a psychological therapy (talking therapy). This rate was noted
as being lower than the English average and the lowest amongst a group of similar
CCGs.

This performance has now significantly improved and all national targets have been
achieved or exceeded in subsequent years.

This report has been prepared collaboratively by NHS Trafford CCG’s Lead
Commissioner for Mental Health & Learning Disability and Dr Dale Huey, Consultant
Clinical Psychologist and Strategic Lead for the Primary Care Psychological Therapy
Division of Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust (GMMH).
GMMH is Trafford’s lead provider of psychological therapy services.

Psychological therapy services for common mental health problems are generally
known as Improving Access to Psychological Therapy Services (IAPT).

In October 2014, NHS England and the Department of Health jointly published
Achieving Better Access to Mental Health Services by 2020. This document outlined
a first set of mental health access and waiting time standards including IAPT
services, for introduction during 2015/16. These commitments were reaffirmed in the
Government’s mandate to NHS England for 2016-17 and included as one of nine
‘must dos’ for the NHS in the NHS Shared Planning Guidance for 2016/17-2020/21.
This mandate became known as the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health
(FYFVMH).

NHS Trafford CCG is committed to delivering the FYFVMH in full by 2020/2021. As
of 2016/17, year on year stretch targets have been required of Trafford which are
performance managed by NHS England via the Greater Manchester Health & Care
Partnership.

Page 1of4



Document Pack Page 16

These targets demand the following access targets® be achieved for Trafford’s adult
population?:

e 2016/17 15.8%
e 2017/18 16.8%
e 2018/19 19%
e 2019/20 22%
e 2020/21 25%.

(No access targets are currently in place for under 18 year olds).

Access percentages are calculated as a percentage of the estimated prevalence of
anxiety and depression within the adult population; commonly understood as being
1:4 or approximately 25% at any one time.

The expansion of IAPT services will continue across the NHS Long Term Plan (2019
—2023/24) to reach an access rate of approximately 31% by 2024.

NHS Trafford CCG commissions a mixed economy for the delivery of its IAPT
services; from Self Help Services (SHS) a VCSE sector organisation and from
GMMH. SHS delivers 2.67% of the overall access target with GMMH responsible for
the remainder, GMMH acts as pathway and clinical lead for Trafford’s IAPT services.

Other than 2017/18 when Trafford failed to achieve its access targets (only 13% was
achieved), the Trafford IAPT service has met all access targets.

The following is a summary of performance up to May 2019.
e Access

More people in Trafford are accessing psychological therapy. In 2018-19, a
total of 6,500 people accessed therapy, which represented 21% of adults
estimated to have a common mental health condition, achieving the national
target of 19%. This is also an improvement compared to the 2017-18
achievement of 13%.

The latest published rolling data for March through May 2019 shows that a
total of 1600 adults accessed therapy, which equates to an access rate of

! Targets are also applied to ensure the quality and effectiveness of the service. These cover waiting times and
recovery rates.

> Children and Young People’s Services: There are no access targets for children accessing psychological
therapy services. However at least 32% of CYP with a diagnosable MH condition are required to be able to
access treatment from an NHS-funded community Mental Health service. According to the Mental Health
Single Data Set Trafford was below target at 26.5%, however this was due to issues with 3rd sector providers
and Community Pediatrics within Pennine Care being unable to flow data to the MHSDS. In June / July 2019
NHS England conducted a manual data collection to the SDCS as this is a common problem across the country.
Under the manual collection, Trafford’s position was improved to show an access rate for 18/19 of 37.3% and
therefore above target.

Page 2 of 4



Document Pack Page 17

5%. The national target is to ensure 22% of people with a common mental
health condition access treatment during the final quarter of 2019-20.
Commissioners and providers are working together to ensure the 2019/20
access target of 22% will be achieved.

Waiting times

8 out of 10 people referred for therapy are seen within 6 weeks and almost
everyone is seen within 18 weeks.

The latest national published data shows that 80% of people, who completed
therapy between March and May 2019, waited less than 6 weeks to start
treatment (target 75%) and 93% waited less than 18 weeks (target 95%).

However local data shows that the 18 week standard is consistently above
the 95% requirement. Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust who is the
main provider of IAPT services has reported data recording issues with the
submission of their activity to the national dataset, resulting in a discrepancy
between national and local performance. The data recording issues are
expected to be resolved over the coming months.

Recovery
Recovery rates continue to perform well. Between March and May 2019, 61%

of people who completed treatment showed significant improvements to their
condition to be classified as recovered, above the national standard of 50%.

A comprehensive presentation, prepared by GMMH'’s clinical lead for psychological
therapy services will be presented to the Committee at the meeting which it is hoped
will answer the Committee’s more detailed questions in full.

The presentation is included as Appendix 1

Recommendation(s)

That the Committee note the contents of this report.

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name:

Ric Taylor, Lead Commissioner Mental Health & Learning
Disability, NHS Trafford CCG

Extension: 4201

1. Key Issues for Health Scrutiny to Consider

Page 3 of 4




Document Pack Page 18

Ensuring this paper provides assurance that there is appropriate levels of access
to talking therapies in Trafford

2. Key Questions for Health Scrutiny to Consider

The committee may want to consider if it now feels adequately briefed on how
talking therapies are delivered in Trafford.

3. Links to Corporate Priorities

Trafford’s IAPT services underpin the prevention of mental ill health and
support the health and wellbeing of our residents. As such the service is
important to the strategic direction set within Trafford’s Corporate Plan 2018-

2022.

Trafford’s seven strategic priorities are:

Building Quality, Affordable and Social Housing, so that Trafford
has a choice of quality homes that people can afford

Health and Wellbeing, so that Trafford has improved health and
wellbeing, and reduced health inequalities

Successful and Thriving Places, so that Trafford has successful and
thriving town centers and communities

Children and Young People, so that all children and young people in
Trafford will have a fair start

Pride in Our Area, so that people in Trafford will take pride in their
local area

Green and Connected, so that Trafford can maximise its green
spaces, transport and digital connectivity

Targeted Support, so that people in Trafford will get support when
they need it most.

4. Consultation

NA

5. Appendices

PowerPoint

Page 4 of 4



saAl7 buinosdwy

saldetay] |ed180|0YdAsd pJojjed] ‘pea |edlul|d
uosewoy] aiey Ig

saldesay] |e21380|oydAsd a4e) Adewldd HINIAD ‘pea d18a3ed1s

AsanH ajeq 4@
piojjell ul 14vi "mm_amhwr_._. _mu_mo_o_._u>mn_ pJojjelrl

Isni| uonepunod SHN
YijeaH |e3usiy
19}1seyauelp i9jealn)

SHN




Document Pack Page 20

aJed Ayjenb y3iy 104 92e|d ul suoiIpuod |je ulunsuy .

321AJ3S 3y} Joy saduajjey)d

2JuewJlojiad JulaI3Yy .
(S1d)) s101e21puU| dUEWIOMId A 1dV] YUM ddueldwo) .

A1INb3 pue ssaulsWI] ‘SSOUBAIIIDYT :2IUBWIOLD]

9|qejieAe sajdelayl paseq SJUSPIAD :UOISINOI]
8uisies ssaualemy .
94ed paddals JO [apOW UOIILIO||e PUB BIINOS [eaI343J :Aemyled

uolsinoad pue Aemyied

22J0p40Mm :9|dodd
S49SN 9IS :9|dodd -

92IAJ3S Y] ‘SISAI[DP OYM pue ‘sasn oym :a|doad
UOoISSIW IJIAIDS

aJed Ajjenb ysiH .
9d0oos pue uolIsiA HININD

s9|didulid

“(AM)
T2:G Sueluojessayy
‘woJy

.. poo3 si
Yd1ym jeys isey p|oH,,

(/sbuiyy j1p anoid,,)

:0)10|A\l p10ojjeal

. vy WL VIR IVILL ey Ty,
—, -_—

wnfs S

P0BIGUY UD T ROMIng 8107 pabat) vy
sapdesay) |eviBojoyaksy piogest
. .....__.wnn.u_ o

TR ST

awuwelisoid



1Sauoy pue uado aie 3\  102dsas pue anjea ap\  djeuolssedwod pue ulied aie 3\ 19413803 3i0Mm 3N adoy andsul ap

s24n1Nnj 213siwido pue saAl| parosdul
9A31Yyde 01 Swia|qold asnsiw aoueisgns pue yijeay |eiusu

AQ pP31934Je Sa1llunWwod pue a|doad Joj S1 UoISIA HININD

32INJ3S ayl bulianijap Jof
s9|dipulid Suiping




Document Pack Page 22

(apisAasia|N pue aaysay)) sueldlan AU
S3JIAISS Y)|BaY [RJUBW [BJRULIRd
S9IIAJ3S A01ISN[ pue y}eaq
S3JIAJDS SSAUJEP pUB Yl[eaY |BIUDN .
pI9IL SHAVD  »
(sjuadsajope pue
ﬂ_svmv S3OIAJDS Y1|BDY [BIUSW DISUSI0) BINIIS MO| PUR WINIPIN  »
S9IIAIS Asnsiw dueisgns uaiedu] .

:puoAaq pue 1S3\ Y1ION 3Y3 191sayduep
13131 Ssoude s3INAIIS Isijeldads asow jo auel e apiaold osje am

$90IAIBS SNS
euqun) @

S90IAI8S YljeaH |eluspy

Ja)sayoue B

S80IAI9S SINS PUE Y)jesH [ejus)y
ployel] pue piojes ‘uojyog B

9d02s unQ



Document Pack Page 23

|

"3JIN ‘8ETD) '$32INI3S
SHN 3npp Buisn 3)doad 10f 2402 Jo ouaiiadxa ayi Buinoiduwy :$331A13s SHN INPo Ul 32U3113dx3 13110 (ZTOT) 92U3|[9IX7 |BIIUlD pUe YijeaH

10j 83M13su| [euoileN U] “INOI (VSN ‘AINJU) 1sTZ Y3 J0j WidISAS YijeaH maN V :wsey) Aljenp ayi Suissol) (TO0T) SUIdIPSIA 4O 81n1Isu| ay L

el

318VLIND3
Q3¥LINID NOSY3Id
IN3ID1443
IAILD3447
AANIL

\

-
e

sa|didund




Document Pack Page 24

JONTTIVAFY

d3¥LINID NOSHId

1N3ID0144

AYINODI Y

ANIFNIVIY |
agnC OL IST INW3ILV3IY] OL TvHHIH4TY

Principles



Document Pack Page 25

‘sload pue -
slosinadns ‘swes) diysiapes| wouy yoddns poob sey yoiym a2iAISs B UIYIM ISIXe pue ‘[|IA
‘fouajadwiod jo |aAs] 0} paydjew MyJom xa|dwod pue Buieinwis aAjoAUl A
quawdojansp [euoissajoid [enuiuod pue Buiuies) Jaypny 1oy ssniunpoddo aaey A
‘Alunoas qol pooB yum ainjonlis Jaaled Jesjo e aney “A|
‘aoue|eq ajl|-yiom ajelidoidde ue s|jgqeus |||
‘aouUalayIp S|geAIaSqo ue axew ‘||
‘a|qeholus ale |

18U] sojoJ Buipinoid Ag siy; aAaIyoe. [[IM SN

"90JOPJJOM PaJEAIIOW pue ‘BAIoaye ‘oisiwndo
ue Buidojanap Jayunj pue Buiuieyas ‘buipinioal Ag os op apA “swsjdqold yjesy |ejusw

uowiwo? Buiousiiadxe ajdoad oy ‘a1ed sjeuoissedwod Ajjenb ybiy JoAljep 0} SALlS AN

uoissedwo) pue Ajljenp sawayl om|

uoissiw anQ :sajdulid



: saAl] buinosdu) ' ,8

¢ 2IN13S Y] SIaAI[ap OYM puUb Sasn oym
9|doad




Document Pack Page 27

O¥Z=N :S3jen

12puag |
soiydeaSowa

¢ 92IAJDS 3L SasSN OYAN

9|doad



Document Pack Page 28

‘dnoJ3 pjo s1eah (%t Z) vi-GE ,
9 ¥€-62 341 Suiag sdnou3 a8e Juajenrasd Jsow 3y yum ‘plo siedk (€0°vTF) 68°0F S! 2jdwes syl ssode age ueaw ay |

0v=N ] 16=N v.1=N 88T=N 98T1=N 18=N LT=N

g9 < ¥9-69S S-Sy ¥-G¢€ ve-ST vC-61 8T >
T B [ %T |
%S | | q b

) | 0
| T | oz | BN RA bl Yol1

sdnoun a3y
soiydes3owaq

¢221IAI3aS 9] Sasn OYAA

9|doad



Document Pack Page 29

DOAIISHN ST )y IPREOPIUND P AIeL A R0

‘P10 sJeak (£°STF) #°0€ Su1aqg 19suo jo 33e ueaw ay) pue si1eak G-z 3ulaq uo1IpUod e Jo
Aduanbauj |epow 3yl y1im ‘sieak (ST TTF) 0T 98esane uo paduauadxa ase ajdwes ay3 ssoude saindiyIp Juasaid ay |

%9¢
pooypiiyd aduls

UOIIPUO)) JO SIE3A
0Z< 0C¢-1T 01-9 S-C >

O%Vv.
pooyNpy wouy 5358 71V 40 %

33suQ jo 33y - uonipuo) jo Lad1uoyd

soiydessowaq

§9DIAIDS 3] SIS OYMA

9|doad




Document Pack Page 30

M1 IR RO pur A

(90t=U ‘0%.°0S) S331AI3s Z-T SU1aq |L10) UI PaSSaIIL SBDIAIDS JO Jaquinu Jjo Aduanbauy jepows ay3 yum ‘Aj3udipiodde
(%1°85) SLdISd ’3 (%S 6E) YINBIH |RIUSI 248D 23S SI SYIUOW ZT JOAO PUE UIYIM SIS Passadde Ajjuanbaiy 1son

SYIUOW ZT J2AQ0 @  SYIUOW ZT UIWIM @

uoisinold
Adeaayioyahsd Adeuay| J0133¢§ 10403y yijeay jeiuapy
jeuoiday 3jeAlld d)aH §12s Ksejunjop 1430 % sdnug Junjasuno) Siddd aie) I3
e 0 WM TS U s NN =N (NS
0 . < . =
LT v 67T e zg e g¢ P &5 19 o

[ R4

SasBd 7V J0 %

S$SS9JJY S9JIAJeS J0lid

¢ 9DIAIDS Y] SASN OYM

9|doad



Document Pack Page 31

"%L°9T = 6T073NY-8T0T 3d3S :(JHLT) Suolpuo) yyesH [oa/sAyd wisL 3uo]

‘S|l 9)aJ J0 %6°T = 6T0Z 3ny-8T0T 1d3S {(8T-9T) ajdoad 3unoj

Pun

ssa22e Aep T yum Aemyied palei8aiul dojanap Jayliny 01 pes) |eleursad jo Juawiutodde 1oy

Suipuny Sunnieme 3dejd ul suoidwey) [eleuliad ‘%9 = 6107 SnY-8TOT 1d3S :S|esaa [ereuliad

‘s|edJaa4 1elidoidde 1em|1oe) 01 JBPJIO UL WIDISAS DI1ISN[ YINOA YUM syui| ulosuQ

(6T02) Yruow Jad syuswiuiodde g Suidesane :sioljefsuel] JO ash aullnoy

‘Alessa23u JI (9482 auluuld) SSa41S 1equIo) 01 UO J3Jal pue s|eld)al

asay3 Suiziuond Joj yJomawely 3yl YUm jueljdwod ag 01 anUI3u0d am — |auuostad mu_me-xm
'%9°S = 6T0C 8NY-8TOT 1d9S :S[etdayal 5,99 I9AQ O

‘weal SIVYIN

pJoyes] ayi 1e 3sod y8nouyl 14| JO Ssausieme aseadul 01 sanuuod uoldwey) s,3|doad J19p|0

"}40M uoowosd dIIAIBS YHM Sd/Md J01uas Auedwodoe pue sasinod

(se8en8ue Jay1Q jo siaqeads 4oy ysijSu3) 10S3 Y3noay3 921A13s ajowoud 0} ue|d "a43ud)

924N0SaY lueISHed puUk }JOMI3N JIAVE ISN4L DYl YHm 3siel| 01 sanuijuod uoidwey) JINVY

$s92Je 9jgelinba 3uinosdw|

9|doad



Document Pack Page 32

"98us||eyo. e uoijepowWWOIIL 3]qISSaIIe dlenbapy ‘ysnosoq

93 ssouoe sa213oeud 4o |enplAlpul YHIM UosIel| panuizuod yyum Aljigissadde pue ssaualeme
95e342ul 01 Aemuapun MJOAA ‘Y3noJoq ay3 Ulyiim sal3ijedo] uaamiaq saiyljenbaul swos paiysiysiy
‘(Buiquuosaud pue aoduepuane 33y 01 patedwod 3d11oead 49 Jad saied |eauajad | dVYI) PNV 8T/L10C

uonejndod % S|elud43y 1dVI




Document Pack Page 33

9'¥% +¢ days sisidesay] |edi8ojoydAsd
(A4 sisidesayy 19D

6T'S sioj|9suno)

234  (Sdmd) siauonndeld 8uiaqjiam |edtsojoydAsd
L0 peaq |eajuid
(A3 |elsa8euenl

99°8 uonessiviwpy

(9am) Juawysijqeisa jn4 9210)}40M Jud1IN)

9JJ0410MN




s SaAI7 buinosdw)

uoisinold pub Abmyind




Document Pack Page 35

"‘6T0Z 8ny-8T0¢ 1das wouj Adesayy pasajus ajdoad £0Z9 ‘||eIBA0 4

yijeay jeyuaw Aiepuodias

IIIETEIRTELS

1d1 0iul seanoy |

Aemuyied



Document Pack Page 36

Apsogeiy) )
p days JA3ojoudisg jexu) BuiysUno) 18 dMd
(psoges) ei3ps) X SIapu0sQ waugsnipy SJ3pIosig k%% uorssa:d3q/Aaxuy
ngdads p AR QHIND x3dwo) Waugsnipy + uossa:83Q Ry x ¢ uoissaxdag )RI3PON - PAW

| |

padany

Q3L NI
%

U3y

PaAladal |Bllajal 93U

Aemyiled



Document Pack Page 37

"(6urobuo) syul| 491129 Sulp|ing 01 M3IA e YIIM a11ud) Ajlwed pue Sujjjasuno) ayl Yy3m suilaal Juaday

"(burobuo) sajusd Ajluntiwiod

pue sa1498Ins 9 ||e 01 INquISIp 0} wie 3yl yum pausdisap Sulaq Jo ssa20.4d ul 1a1sod adIAIDS
"SJUDAD ||E 1B 1n0 UDAIS a1am UdAI3 suad pue syded uoljew.loul ‘sjjeq ssaJis

/131sayduew

-J93e3J13/u01da1 /5 N"810°UoNIeS YL’ MMM//:SA1Y 191ISqOM UOIDY SI3IYIIY UO pals]| 3IAIDS
‘S|eJ49494 98e1nodua pue 141

}JO ssaualeme asealou] 0} JoSeuew Yum 1pw Apuadas pea [eatul]d HN 3oV yum diysuonelal suiosuQ
1900320 10} pIY00( |} UOIIRID0SSY 30415

‘(butobuo) pioyed] ui sdo 1e Jo doup 13300g 32IAISS

"(burobuo) uoiyeyuasaid e op 03 40 (S)3uluiow 3309

B pUS)ik 0} 1S3493ul paJo|dxa pue pJoyjel] ul S)20(dq Uollepowwodde Patal|ays uaalino payiauap|
"$39)j00q

32JAJDS pue UOREBWIOUI YUM (3]eS ul SuISNOH aJe) ed1x3 /8UlAl] PalsISSy) suapJlen euoly papirold
‘sowwesdoad 419yl yUm S13|4es| painquiisip a4ieay] |ealsnjp uoiswin

‘pdoyjed) uj sajed/sdoys snoliea 01 s1ajjes| painguiisiq

‘(s19y4ewJadns 4aylo Ylim Yyonol ul usaq) 3|es ‘0d3sa| ul puels

19]139|SMBU ,S1aJ4ed u] pajulid 1 4] InOge 3211y "JUSA3 SJaie)

"(WJ04 YIXIS SHID WeyduLY ‘p4041841S JewwWelD uoiswin) sluans/sy|el a3a|j0)/|00yds

6T0¢/8TOC Ul S1uaAs 3ulosuo pue palajdwo)

ssauaJleme 3uisiey



Document Pack Page 38

"(4eaA e sawin ¢ suni) dnoug (14D) Adesay] pasnao4 uoissedwo)
{954n02 Y}dam-g — dnouo ([ D9IN) Adesays aAnIu3od paseq-ssau|njpul :sdnoas Juaiin)

"uoisinold 14y auianos ysnoayl 1ow aq o1 Aj@XIjun aJe sandiyip asoym (GHIND)

19pJosiq YyijeaH |eluaN uowwo) xa|dwod yum sunpuasaid ajdoad uoj (suoissas 0z -9T) ‘(14D
‘pawIojul- 1D ‘PasNI0-_WBYIS “‘YAINT ‘19D 8°9) sayoeosdde jo a8ues e Suliayo (s1s18ojoyaAsd
guljjasuno) /|eawu) £ 8uipnjout) sasidesayy |eoi8ojoydAsd yiim Adesays [eai8ojoydisd +€ dazs

‘uonejndod |ejeursad ay3 yum
Ajjeaydads Supjaom ui mc_c_mb 2J2U3WWod 01 Jnoqge/paulel) aJe (9IME'Z) Jels Jo sidaquidw ¢
"(3IMT) Bululesy ouswwod 03 T pue (JHJ1T) suonipuod yijeay [esisAyd
wLIa3-3uo] yum updom up Sululesy o4193ds [euoilippe aaey (9IMg'{) JJe1S JO SlIaquiaw 9
'€
da3s 1e (1d1) Adesayy _mcoew&wuc_ pue Ya3 ‘Suljjasunod sadnod 404 uoisinoid e OS|e Sl 3J3Y]
(suoissas
9T ulyym Ajjensn) sysidesayl 190 yum 19D ‘(suolssas 9T uiyum Ajjensn) suijjasuno) :g dajzs

‘(sjuswiujodde g uiyym Ajjensn {suoissas
dnoy jjey g uiSelane) sisuoinoeld uisq|jam |ed180joydAsd yum djay-4|as papins :z dazs

suondo onnadesay)

UOISIAO.d



saAIn buinoiduw

A1Inb3 pue ssauljaWi] ‘SS9UIAIIIBLT :9J0UBWIOLIR




Document Pack Page 40

%6°86

%1°08

%S5

6T/8T uINNNQ y JauenD

%56 JO 393.€) (S)93aM 8T) sawly 3unniem 1dvI
%6GZ J0 193.1e3 (syoam g) sawil Suiyiepy 1Ldvi

%05 30 193483 A1anoday 1dvI

9ouajenasd 9%/ T 40 1984e) UoIIN(IIUO) 338483 SS3IIY 1dVI

610¢C - 8T0Z 198481 paoyei] HININD

(SId)) s101e21pU| 2UBWIO0Id ASY 1dVI Y1Mm 3dueldwo)

9JUBW.I0}13d




Document Pack Page 41

‘s98eJaAe |euolleu pue [euoidal ueyl awiy

Jusw3iujodde puodas 03 151y 133uU0| 0S|V *(z8 ‘LTOT ‘16 ‘9TOT) |[9M 53] Sulwaopiad AjJualsisuod
uayl pue g1z 031 dn aaly doy ‘(aauafpaa.d) 91es sSa22€e UQ "PJIY3 dol ulym pue jueljdwod
Aj3ua1sisuod ‘(11Y) awil 3|qi1ssadde uQ ‘A9 Ul (8T0Z) 359G puodas Jo (6T0T ‘LT0T ‘9T0T ‘STOT) 3599
pue pue|3u3 Jo YLON %0T dol ul (6TOZ-¥T0TZ) Aj3US1SISUOD SSaUaAIIIaffa palelisuowap pojjel]

(%59 wie)
Juawanoiduwi|

9'8L 0°LL A 19L 96, ajqeljay

(%0S wie)
A1anoday

8’19 7'€9 'ss 9
E!!! 6T0Z %

COm_LmQEOU pue 1uad9Yy

IJuew.lojiad



S9AI] Buiroaduwg g

2402 a1buoissodwod A1ljbnb ybiy o1 s10aJy3
92IAJ3S 9Y3] J0J Sasua||ey)




Document Pack Page 43

"S92IAIIS 1S1|e1dads 01 J9O SUOINPUOD) Yl|edH [pIIsAyd Wi Suoq Jno Suidauuo)

uonejndod uno jo aAnelussaudal ale am "9 ‘@|doad

Jo suoiiodoud 3ySu ay3 Sulnsud inqg ‘Suissadde ajdoad ybnoua 1sn( Jou ‘ssade 3|qennby
‘awn

ssa2e Aep pT Yyum Aemyied paresSajul dojaasp Jayriny 01 pes| |eleursad jo jusawiujodde Joj
Suipuny Sunieme aoe(d ul suojdwey) |eleulIad ‘%9 = 6T0C 8NY-8TOT 1d3S :S|elidyal |eleulsad
‘s|el9)94 aieudoidde a1eyl|ioe) 03 JBPJO Ul WRISAS 313SN[ YINOA YUMm syuj| SuloduQ

'$195Se AJlUNWWOD pue S3JIAISS J9YI0 YUM paleidajul

Ajny pue ‘Allunwwod [e20] Y} Ul pappaquwa uoisinold 14y [ereulsad Jud|[adxa Suldojanag
"9JBS PUB dAI1IBH ‘paJ1udd uosiad ululewad

1S[IYM 2482 SULIBA|DP JO SUBSW pue S3180|0UYIS] SAIIRUIB)(E JO SN 3Y] YIm Suileaouu)
‘a|doad Uno ||e 104 SUOIILIO]| 3|qISSDIIE Ul pue ‘Ajjuaiiya ‘saidesays

9AI1D3YYD Paseq 9IUSPIAS JaAI[SP 03 uonepowwodde sieldoidde uipuny pue SulINOS

. 's9]0J 9|qeAofus
pue Suie|nwils ‘o|qeuleisns aJ Uoissiw N0 SuiA3IYde 13240 JoM Suluielas pue 3ul}iniday
"(d171 SHN ulyum pasinbau uoisuedxa Jayuny ‘Tz0Z YaseN Aq JeaA Jad Buissadde

ajdoad T/8‘/) 91eJ ssa20e 3seasdul 0} Aloeded 92101140M JUBIDIHNS 10} Suipun) 3ulNd3S

aoe|d ul aie JDH 404 SUOIMPUOI 3ulNSUj

saduajieyd



Document Pack Page 44

‘Ajijenb y3iy sujewas Suissadoe aue ajdoad .
ysnous 1eym eyl aunsua ‘9°| ‘sujewop Ayjenb Jayilo ay3 uiejujew 01 aAIBAOUUI
pue JuawWisaAuUl sadinbad 11 1ey3 i 91ed Ss992e 3u|Sealdau] Jaylin) 03 a3uljjeyd syl .
"@duaj||eyd e suiewal Inq ‘£ TOZ 419qWa29q d2uls panosdwi] sey 931ed SS90y
"92IAJ3S paJjuad uosiad pajeidsudde Ajdoap e saledipul ejep asualiadxa Juailed .
"UOI83J 931 Ul DAIIDDYD JSOW dY3 JO dBUO
sJeaA aA1) 1se| 9y J9A0 A[JUS1SISUOD UDD( SBY PUB ‘S| pJOyjed] Ul uoISINOId JdV| BYL
'sieaA unoj Jo} uoissaidap pue Aaixue Suiliwi|
-9JI| YUM paAI| sey pue ‘sop Ajdes ‘sjewdy S| mmu_imm Jna duisn uosiad s8esane By .

{

Adewwing



Document Pack Page 45

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health Scrutiny Committee
Date: 26™ September 2019
Report for: Information

Report of: Public Health

Report Title

Trafford Suicide Prevention Strategy and Action Plan

Summary

An overview of progress made with Trafford’s Suicide Prevention Strategy and
Action Plan and the findings of a local suicide audit.

Recommendation(s)

To note the information in the report

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Report prepared by Hannah Gaffney, Trainee Clinical Psychologist, Public Health
Team, 13™ August 2019
Contact: Ben Fryer, 07739 856 665 or Eleanor Roaf, ext 1201

1. Introduction

Suicide is a major public health problem. In 2017, almost 6000 people in the UK took
their own lives. Suicide is the leading cause of death in men between the ages of 35
and 49 and the biggest killer of adults between the ages of 35 and 49. Suicide also
has a devastating impact on the individuals, families and communities that are
bereaved or affected.

A range of inter-related social, relational and individual factors contribute to, maintain
and increase the risk of suicide. Risk factors in Trafford appear consistent with local
and national trends. Given the diversity of risk factors, a whole system approach to
support and intervention is crucial.



Document Pack Page 46

Reducing the number of suicides is a key priority for the NHS over the next decade.
In 2016, The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health document outlined a plan to
reduce the suicide rate by 10% by 2020/21 and progress continues to be made
toward this goal in Trafford.

This paper describes the progress made with the Trafford Suicide Prevention Action
Plan and outlines the findings of a local suicide audit. The questions outlined on
pages 5 and 6 of the ‘Suicide Prevention — A Guide for Local Authorities’ document
provide the structure for the paper. Questions from this document appear in italics in
this report, together with our response.

- Is suicide prevention included in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS)

Suicide prevention is addressed within the JSNA and JHWS as part of the Mental
Health priority area. Further detail is held within the suicide prevention strategy,
rather than in the JSNA or JHWS.

2. Trafford Context

- What is the rate of suicide among the general population in the local authority
area? Is this rate higher or lower than the general population rate for
England?

In Trafford, an average of 15 people per year die by suicide. The suicide rate in
Trafford is lower (7.3 per 100,000) though statistically similar to England (9.6 per
100,000). It is the lowest in the North West and Greater Manchester and lowest
among a group of 15 other statistically similar local authorities.

- What is the current trend in suicide rates showing?

The overall trend has been towards a reduction (from 11.5 per 100,000 in 2001-03 to
7.3 per 100,000 in 2015-2017).

- Is information available on the rate of suicide among different groups and
gender, eg middle-aged men?

Five year (2013-2017) data from the Primary Care Mortality Database indicates that
four times as many men died by suicide compared to females in Trafford. This is
consistent with Greater Manchester and national figures.

Inequality in Trafford is reflected in the suicide rate, with a rate of 9.8 per 100,000 in
the most deprived areas compared to 4.6 per 100,000 in the least deprived.
However, the averages are not statistically significantly different due to small
numbers.

Risk factors in Trafford appear consistent with the national picture and include; being
male, being middle aged (45-49), having a history of self-harm, physical health



Document Pack Page 47

problems, relationship breakdown, living in an area of high deprivation, experiencing
financial difficulties or problem debt, working in low-skilled manual occupations or
skilled building trades, carers and women working in nursing or the arts/media. The
majority (two thirds) of people who die by suicide are not in contact with mental
health services despite mental health problems being a key risk factor for suicide.
The results of a local suicide audit conducted using 2015 data identified that the
most common method of suicide in Trafford was hanging/strangulation.

- Are any data collected on attempted suicides within the local authority area? If
so, by whom? Are these data shared with other agencies?

Data is routinely collected on attempted suicides attended by the Greater
Manchester Fire and Rescue Service and this data has been shared with the public
health team in Trafford as part of the work of the Suicide Prevention Partnership.
Work towards attempted suicide data being shared with the Trafford Suicide
Prevention Partnership by the North West Ambulance Service is also within our
action plan.

3. The Trafford Suicide Prevention Strategy and Action Plan

- Have you got a suicide prevention strategy and action plan in place?

Trafford has a suicide prevention strategy and action plan in place. The strategy is
all-age and considers wider determinants, prevention, intervention and support
following a suicide. Consistent with national priorities, Trafford’s aim is to reduce
suicides by at least 10% by 2020 and to provide better support to individuals,
families and communities at risk of or affected by suicide.

A stakeholder event was held in June 2019, which saw 40 representatives from 23
organizations come together to discuss how to prevent suicides in Trafford. This
event fed into the development of the action plan for Trafford which was launched in
July 2019.

Consistent with the Greater Manchester suicide prevention strategy, the Trafford
strategy and action plan focusses on the eight priority areas identified in the Public
Health England guidance for local suicide prevention plans:

e Reducing mental distress and improving mental wellbeing and resilience

¢ Reducing inequalities

¢ Improving the mental health of people with long term physical health
conditions

e Reducing the suicide risk in men

e Preventing and responding to self-harm

e Improving the mental health of children, young people and women during
pregnancy and postnatally

¢ Reducing isolation and loneliness



Document Pack Page 48

e Offering suicide bereavement support.

Work has begun to address these priorities through the action plan and progress is
described below.

4. Suicide Prevention Partnership Group

- Partnership working is key. Have you set up a multi-agency suicide prevention
partnership?

A multi-agency suicide prevention partnership group was established in Trafford in
August 2019 to oversee progress of the action plan.

- What other local agencies and partners are members of this group or network,
or are consulted as part of any suicide prevention activity (eg police)?

The following key agencies and partners are represented in the suicide prevention
partnership:

. Trafford Public Health
. Trafford CCG

. Trafford Communications Team

. Trafford Partnership and Community Directorate
. Trafford Adult Community Social Care Service

. Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust (GMMH)
. Medicines Management, Trafford CCG

. Trafford Third Sector Adult Mental Health (Bluesci)
. Trafford Third Sector Child Mental Health (42nd Street)

. Department for Work & Pensions, Trafford Cluster

. Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service

. Greater Manchester Police

. North West Ambulance Service

. Her Majesty’s Prison & Probation Service, Trafford

. Trafford Housing (Irwell Valley Homes; Your Housing Group)
. South Manchester Coroner’s Office

. Local Care Alliance

. Trade Unions

Does this involve GPs or other professionals working in primary care settings?
If not, how do they input into activities or actions to prevent suicides locally?

A Trafford GP is also a member of the partnership group and provides expertise and
input into the local actions.

- Is there a local councillor with specific responsibility for suicide prevention?



Document Pack Page 49

Two Trafford councillors have specific responsibility for suicide prevention and one
councillor takes on the role of chair of the suicide prevention partnership group.

- What level of understanding of suicide do local councillors, directors of public
health (DsPH) and CCGs have?

Local councillors, the director of public health and the lead commissioner in Mental
Health for the CCG in Trafford are engaged fully with the suicide prevention work
and have a good understanding of suicide in the borough and the priority actions.

5. Progress with Action Plan

- Are you developing suicide prevention awareness and skills training for
professionals in primary care and local government (housing, environmental
health, social care, benefits, etc) and other services that may come into
contact with individuals at risk of suicide? If so, what groups of front-line staff
have had such training? Does it involve the local community?

Trafford will roll-out a mandatory e-learning package on suicide prevention and skills
training to all Trafford council staff to increase recognition of signs, increase suicide
awareness and encourage active signposting and support. We will monitor take-up
of the online e-learning package and ensure compliance with refresher training every
two years. This package will also be offered to Trafford CCG staff. We will also roll-
out a ‘Mental Health in the Workplace’ e-learning package to all Trafford Council staff
with managerial responsibilities to increase recognition and support for mental
wellbeing in the workplace.

Trafford will continue to provide training for primary care staff on the presentation of
psychological distress and identification of risk, especially in men and older adults
and support an ‘every contact counts’ approach.

The Primary Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service (PCMHWB) in Trafford
provides an integrated, whole systems approach for individuals with inter-related
health and social problems (e.g. debt, employment, housing) in the community. This
service also supports links between people and their communities through a social
prescribing model. This will further increase opportunities to identify and support
people at risk of suicide in primary care.

Finally, we will promote the Greater Manchester ‘Shining a light on suicide’ campaign
to the local community through our public facing websites and social media channels
including a brief online training package developed by the Greater Manchester
Suicide Prevention Partnership “Suicide, Let’'s Talk” to increase awareness of suicide
and reduce stigma.

- Could you target certain high-risk professions? Workers such as farmers and
fishermen have a higher risk of suicide.



Document Pack Page 50

We are collating data on suicide risk by profession as part of the real time data pilot
to enable more effective targeting of messages towards those at greatest risk locally.
However, we will aim to target the high risk professions identified as at risk nationally
e.g. low-skilled manual occupations and nurses.

- Are you providing training to frontline staff who come into contact with those at
greatest risk of suicide, such as drug and alcohol workers? Teach them how
to broach the subject, how to support people and where they can be
signposted for further help.

We aim to develop awareness of signs of suicidal ideation for staff groups that have
contact with the public through a brief online training package developed by the
Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Partnership “Suicide, Let’s Talk” to staff
such as GP receptionists, pharmacists, Department for Work and Pensions staff,
housing groups, ambulance & contact centre staff, link workers in PCMHWS;
homeless teams; foodbank staff; youth services; security staff and hotel workers.

We also aim to support the inclusion of questions regarding mental health/suicidal
ideation as part of initial tenancy interviews completed by local housing groups (e.g.
Irwell Valley Homes and Your Housing Group) and ensure staff are aware of support
available in Trafford to signpost to.

- Have you identified high-frequency suicide locations? Reduce access to the
means of suicide by providing extra safeguards and support at buildings rail
crossings, cliff edges and bridges that have been used by people to take their
own lives

Trafford is participating in a 12-month Real Time Suspected Suicide Data Pilot
alongside Stockport and Tameside. The pilot began in June 2019. The Trafford
public health team is alerted to a suspected suicide by the South Manchester
coroner via an analyst from the Rochdale public health team. This data will support
the identification of high risk locations or locations at which safety improvements
could prevent suicides. Reports from the RTSSD pilot will be provided on a quarterly
basis to the Trafford Suicide Prevention Partnership. These reports will outline the
number of suspected suicides, themes, trends and actions taken. Additional actions
may also be identified through review of these reports by the partnership group.

- What steps have been considered or taken to reduce the risk of suicide at
such locations?

We are not aware of any locations identified as high risk (>1 suicide) in Trafford at
present from the data available. However, the ongoing RTSSD pilot may identify
locations where steps could be taken to reduce risk and this will be actively
monitored in line with the Standard Operating Procedure for this work.

- What other agencies are involved in supporting this preventative action at
high risk places?



Document Pack Page 51

The Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service, Greater Manchester Police and
North West Ambulance Service are all supportive of preventative action and are
represented on the Trafford suicide prevention partnership group. Sharing of
knowledge and data will be key to preventative action and this has been agreed as
an action at the most recent partnership meeting. Key national organisations with
responsibility for high risk locations, including Network Rail and Highways England
work with the council through the Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Executive.

- Does the local coroners’ office support preventative action at local level? If so:
oo Are coroners formal members of any groups or networks that exist?

oo Do they provide access to coroners’ records of inquests for local analysis or
audit purposes?

o Do they involve or inform the local authority or DPH if they identify (at
inquest proceedings or earlier) particular areas of concern, eg locations used
for suicide, possible clusters of suicide, increase in a particular method or new
and emerging method of suicide?

The South Manchester Coroner is supportive of preventative action at a local level
and is a member of the partnership group in Trafford. The coroner is part of the real
time suicide data pilot, which is providing timely data that can be rapidly actioned
e.g. a suitable support response at a system level such as for schools or workplaces.
This data also facilitates the identification of patterns and trends in real-time such as
suicide clusters or new and emerging methods of suicide.

While Coroner’s office has provided records for previous suicide audits (most
recently in 2016/16) a combination of computerization of records and the GDPR
regulations that came into effect in May 2018 has made direct access to records has
more difficult. We are exploring different ways of accessing this data. However, the
RTSSD pilot is providing timely data that can be rapidly actioned e.g. a suitable
support response at a system level such as for schools or workplaces. This data also
facilitates the identification of patterns and trends in real-time such as suicide
clusters or new and emerging methods of suicide.

- Do JSNAs adequately identify action to support people at risk of suicide or
suicidal behaviour within the local population?

Action to support people at risk of suicide or with suicide behaviour is described
within our suicide prevention strategy, rather than within our JSNA. The JSNA in
Trafford is an accessible high level summary of health and wellbeing in Trafford, and
identifies needs rather than specific actions. It highlights mental health as a key
priority with which the suicide prevention strategy aligns.

- Tackling self-harm and targeting the young are new priorities. How are you
working with schools and colleges?



Document Pack Page 52

Partners such as 42nd Street, Papyrus, Talk Shop and the Youth Offending Service
will continue to raise awareness of mental health problems and suicide prevention
through training to their staff and staff working with Children & Young People in
mental health services, schools, colleges and universities.

The Greater Manchester I-THRIVE programme will continue to promote and provide
children and young people with psychological support through health services (e.g.
Healthy Young Minds), schools and early help hubs, reducing stigma and improving
emotional wellbeing for young people.

We also commission Kooth, a popular online counselling service for people aged
under-25 which can provide free and timely psychological support. This service also
provides inreach to schools to raise awareness of mental health issues and the
services available.

- How are you supporting those affected by suicide? There is strong evidence
to suggest those who have been bereaved are also at risk — invest in services
to help them.

We have established links with the Greater Manchester Suicide Bereavement
Information Service to ensure Trafford residents affected by suicide have access to
accurate information on where they can access support in Trafford. We will ensure
local service information is up-to-date and accessible.

The RTSSD pilot will increase opportunities to provide timely support to
organisations such as schools and workplaces affected by a suicide. We will
signpost to resources produced by the Samaritans e.g. the “Step by Step” guidance
for schools and colleges and resources available through the Greater Manchester
“Shining a light on Suicide” website.

- What about the media? You can work with the local press and broadcasters to
ensure responsible reporting of suicides.

We link with and support the work the Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention
Partnership is undertaking with local media outlets e.g. the Manchester Evening
News to ensure compliance with national guidance developed by the Samaritans on
the responsible reporting of suicides in the media.

- Are you providing or can you signpost families to bereavement services?

The Trafford Wellbeing Counselling Service based at the Macmillan Wellbeing
Centre can offer bereavement counselling to people who are bereaved by suicide.
Individuals can be signposted to this service directly or via the Greater Manchester
Suicide Bereavement Information Service.

Copies of the Trafford Suicide Prevention Plan and Strategy are attached.



Document Pack Page 53

Trafford Suicide Prevention Plan 2019

Hannah Gaffney
Trainee Clinical Psychologist, Public Health, Trafford Council

Ben Fryer
Public Health Specialty Registrar, Trafford Council

Ric Taylor
Lead Commissioner Mental Health and Learning Disability, NHS Trafford CCG



Summary

Document Pack Page 54

Suicide is a major public health problem. In 2017, almost 6000 people in the UK took their own lives.

Suicide is the leading cause of death in men between the ages of 35 and 49 and the biggest killer of

adults between the ages of 35 and 49. Suicide also has a devastating impact on the individuals,

families and communities that are bereaved or affected.

In Trafford, there are on average, 15
people per year who die by suicide.
Three quarters of deaths by suicide
are men and many people are not in
contact with mental health services.
This strategy outlines our priorities
and action plan to mitigate risk
through maximising support for
people at risk of suicide and those
bereaved or affected by suicide.
Ultimately we aim to reduce the
number of suicides in the borough.

Male L
Living in an
Aged area of high
45-49 deprivation
. Occupation
History of Key rl S k eg. man.ual
self-harm job /nursing/
factors
Relationship
Financial breakdown /
difficulties social isolation

Mental or

physical health
problems

A range of inter-related social, relational and individual factors contribute to, maintain and increase

the risk of suicide. Importantly, talking about suicide does not increase risk. Risk factors in Trafford

appear consistent with local and national trends. Given the diversity of risk factors, a whole system

approach to support and intervention is crucial.

Overview of Key Priorities & Actions for Trafford

Prevention

e Establish a Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group & Governance
arrangements

o Continue efforts to reduce inequality in
the borough

e Link with voluntary and community
organisations to maximise whole-system
support available for mental wellbeing

e Increase public awareness and reduce
stigma through highlighting regional and
national suicide prevention campaigns

e Mandate an e-learning training package
for council and CCG staff across services
to increase recognition of signs, increase
awareness and encourage active
signposting and support

o Pilot a Real-Time Suicide Data initiative
to improve understanding of local
suicides e.g. high risk locations

Intervention

e Continued provision of
proactive physical and
mental healthcare services

e Encourage professionals to
ask about mental wellbeing
at every opportunity
utilising an ‘every contact
counts’ approach

e Increase recognition of
depression in primary care
particularly in Older Adults
and men

e Develop awareness of
signs of suicidal ideation for
staff groups that have
contact with groups at high
suicide risk e.g. pharmacists

Postvention

e Routinely signpost
people affected by
suicide to the new
Greater Manchester
Suicide Bereavement
Information Service

o Utilise existing support
services in Trafford as
appropriate for suicide
bereavement

e Real-Time Suicide Data
will increase
opportunity to provide
timely support to
organisations e.g.
schools affected by a
suicide




Document Pack Page 55

Introduction

Suicide is defined as an act of intentional self-harm leading to death or fatal injury caused by an
action of undetermined intent' . Globally, nearly 800,000 people die by suicide every year?. Suicide is
a major public health problem. In England, suicide is the biggest killer of adults between 20 and 34
years old and the leading cause of death for men between the age of 35 and 49°. The majority (two
thirds) of individuals who die by suicide are not in contact with mental health services”.
Furthermore, suicide attempts are up to 30 times more common than suicide and are a key
predictor of completed suicide’. The impact of suicide also goes way beyond the individual affected®
and can have a devastating impact upon the individuals, families and communities that are
bereaved’. The suicide rate therefore is an important marker of the underlying mental health of the

population.

Suicide and para-suicidal behaviours such as self-harm are preventable. This strategy and action
plan aligns with the key priorities of the Trafford Health and Wellbeing Strategy and is tailored to the
needs of the population of Trafford. Specifically, in line with the aims of the national and Greater
Manchester suicide prevention plans®, we aim to reduce the suicide and self-harm rate in Trafford
and crucially provide better support to the individuals, families and communities affected by suicide
and self-harm. To achieve this, a co-ordinated whole systems approach is needed as a large

proportion of people who die by suicide in Trafford are not accessing mental health services.

! Suicide statistics report 2017. Samaritans.

https://www.samaritans.org/sites/default/files/kcfinder/files/Suicide statistics report 2017 Final.pdf

% National suicide prevention strategies: progress, examples and indicators. Geneva:

World Health Organization; 2018. Accessed here: https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/279765/9789241515016-
eng.pdf?ua=1

® Deaths registered in England and Wales (series DR): 2017. Office for National Statistics. 2018.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsregisteredinenglandandwal
esseriesdr/2017#suicide-accounted-for-an-increased-proportion-of-deaths-at-ages-5-to-19-years-in-2017

* The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with

Mental Iliness. Annual Report: England, Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales. October 2017. University of Manchester.

® Epidemiology of Suicide and the Psychiatric Perspective. Silke Bachmann. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public
Health. https://www.ncbi.nIm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6068947/pdf/ijerph-15-01425.pdf

® How Many People Are Exposed to Suicide? Not Six. Cerel at al., 2018. The American Association of Suicidology.

7 Preventing suicide in England: A cross-government outcomes strategy to save lives; 2012, updated 2017.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/430720/Preventing-Suicide-.pdf
8 GM Suicide Prevention Strategy. 2017. Greater Manchester Combined Authority. https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2018/05/GM-Suicide-Prevention-24.02.17.pdf



https://www.samaritans.org/sites/default/files/kcfinder/files/Suicide_statistics_report_2017_Final.pdf
https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/279765/9789241515016-eng.pdf?ua=1
https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/279765/9789241515016-eng.pdf?ua=1
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6068947/pdf/ijerph-15-01425.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/430720/Preventing-Suicide-.pdf
https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/GM-Suicide-Prevention-24.02.17.pdf
https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/GM-Suicide-Prevention-24.02.17.pdf

Document Pack Page 56

In developing this strategy, we have drawn on key policy documents and national and local guidance
including the NHS 10 Year Plan (2019)°, the National Suicide Prevention Strategy (2012, updated
2017)’, the Cross-Government Suicide Prevention Workplan (2019), the Five Year Forward View for
Mental Health!, the PHE Local Suicide Prevention Planning: A practical resource® and NICE guidance
on preventing suicide in community settings (2018)". We have also utilised the key findings of a
local suicide audit conducted in Trafford in 2015 and Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF)

data for Trafford between 2013 and 2017.

National context

In 2017, 5,821 people in the UK took their own lives, with an age-standardised rate of 10.1 deaths
per 100,000 population™. In 2017/2018, 103,936 people were admitted to hospital as an emergency
caused by intentional self-harm, with an age-standardised rate of 185.5 admissions per 100,000
population (fingertips). The suicide risk is increased 49-fold in the year after deliberate self-harm®.
Suicide and self-harm are often preceded by years of suicidal thoughts and most people who make
an attempt to end their life will do so within the first year of the onset of suicidal
thoughts'®.Nationally, the suicide rate has been broadly declining. However, certain groups remain

at heightened risk. Three quarters of suicides in the UK are male and this proportion has remained

° The NHS Long Term Plan. January 2019. NHS England. https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-term-
plan.pdf

10Cross-Government Suicide Prevention Workplan. 2019. HM Government.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/772210/national-suicide-prevention-
strategy-workplan.pdf

1 Five Year Forward View for Mental Health. 2016. NHS England. https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-
Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf

12Local Suicide Prevention Planning: A Practical Resource. 2016. Public Health England.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/585411/PHE local suicide preventi
on_planning practice resource.pdf

13 Preventing Suicide in Community and Custodial Settings. 2018. NICE. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng105/resources/preventing-
suicide-in-community-and-custodial-settings-pdf-66141539632069

14 Suicides in the UK: 2017 registrations. Office for National Statistics.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2017
registrations

- Hawton K et al. Suicide following self-harm: Findings from the Multicentre Study of self-harm in England: 2000-2012. Journal of
Affective Disorders, Vol 175, 147-151

'® 0Connor R and Nock M. The psychology of suicidal behaviour. The Lancet Psychiatry. 1.1; 73-85. 2014,
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpsy/article/P11S2215-0366(14)70222-6/fulltext



https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-term-plan.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-term-plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772210/national-suicide-prevention-strategy-workplan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772210/national-suicide-prevention-strategy-workplan.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/585411/PHE_local_suicide_prevention_planning_practice_resource.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/585411/PHE_local_suicide_prevention_planning_practice_resource.pdf
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng105/resources/preventing-suicide-in-community-and-custodial-settings-pdf-66141539632069
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng105/resources/preventing-suicide-in-community-and-custodial-settings-pdf-66141539632069
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2017registrations
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2017registrations
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpsy/article/PIIS2215-0366(14)70222-6/fulltext

Document Pack Page 57

consistent since the mid-1990s®. Males aged 45 to 49 years had the highest suicide rate in 2017 with
24.8 per 100,000 males while females aged 50-54 had the highest rate at 6.8 per 100,000 females®.
However, rates of deliberate self-harm are two to three times higher in women compared to men’.
Suicide rates tend to increase with age, being highest among people aged 45- to 49°. The rates then

decrease until the age of 80 to 84 years when they begin to rise again.

People in the most deprived 10% of society are more than twice as likely to die by suicide than the
least deprived 10% (14.3 compared to 7.1 per 100,000)". Financial difficulties have been shown to
significantly predict suicidal ideation even when controlling for other socio-economic factors (e.g.
age, gender, marital and employment status)*®. For example, over 420,000 people in problem debt
think about taking their own life in England each year and 100,000 of these people attempt suicide™®.
A combination of poor practices such as red letters and severe consequences increase the burden on

people and can cause and exacerbate psychological distress™.

Higher risk occupations include men working in low-skilled manual occupations and skilled building
finishing trades, women working in the arts and media or nursing profession and male and female
carers™. Relationship breakdown can also contribute to suicide risk, especially among divorced
men”’. In 2017, the most common method of suicide was hanging, suffocation or strangulation. The
second most common was poisoning®. Research has demonstrated that almost half (approximately
47% percent) of individuals who die by suicide were seen in primary care one month prior to their

death?.

17Who is most at risk of suicide? Analysis and explanation of the contributory risks of suicide. 2017. Office for National Statistics.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/whoismostatriskofsu
icide/2017-09-07

'8 A silent killer. Breaking the link between financial difficulty and suicide. 2018. The Money and Mental Health Policy Institute.
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/A-Silent-Killer-Report.pdf

9 Suicide by occupation, England: 2011 to 2015. Office for National Statistics.

 Men, suicide and Society. Why disadvantaged men in mid-life die by suicide. Samaritans. 2012.
https://www.samaritans.org/sites/default/files/kcfinder/files/Men%20and%20Suicide%20Research%20Report%20210912.pdf

2 Primary care contact prior to suicide in individuals with mental illness. Pearson et al., 2009. British Journal of General Practice.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2765834/pdf/bjgp59-825.pdf



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/whoismostatriskofsuicide/2017-09-07
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/whoismostatriskofsuicide/2017-09-07
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/A-Silent-Killer-Report.pdf
https://www.samaritans.org/sites/default/files/kcfinder/files/Men%20and%20Suicide%20Research%20Report%20210912.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2765834/pdf/bjgp59-825.pdf

Document Pack Page 58

Greater Manchester context

An audit conducted across all 10 boroughs of Greater Manchester identified 201 suicides or deaths
of undetermined intent in 2015. There is significant variation in suicide rates across the boroughs of
Greater Manchester with the greatest numbers in the city of Manchester (N=36) and Wigan (N=40)
and the least in the borough of Trafford (N=9). Rates of emergency admissions to hospital due to
deliberate self-harm are higher in Greater Manchester compared to England (217.9 per 100,000
compared to 185.5 per 100,000 population)®’. Gender bias is similar compared to national rates
(75% male) and around half (52.7% n=95) did not have a mental health diagnosis. A total of 82 men
(49%) and 17 women (50%) had physical health issues including asthma, heart disease, injuries and
cancer. Around two thirds (69%) of people had visited their GP in the previous month and almost
half (49%) had visited their GP in the previous week which is higher than national figures. Many
people had researched suicide methods on the internet prior to their death. Generally, the suicide
risk factors in Greater Manchester are consistent with the national picture. Physical health issues
(e.g. injuries and chronic or severe illness), mental health problems, issues with drugs and alcohol, a
recent bereavement and social isolation were factors that appeared associated with greater risk of
suicide in Greater Manchester. Furthermore, a significant proportion of cases (49%) had three or

more risk factors identified.

Local picture

Over the 5-year period 2013-2017, 74 Trafford residents died by suicide or undetermined injury®.
This is an average of 15 people per year. Although the suicide rate for Trafford as a whole is lower
(7.3 per 100,000) than England (9.6 per 100,000) and the lowest in the North West and Greater

Manchester, striving to reduce the number of suicides and lives affected by suicide remains a key

priority.

22
Public Health Outcomes Framework, Indicator 2.10ii Emergency Hospital Admissions for Intentional Self-Harm. Updated 5" Feb 2019.

23 .
Primary Care Mortality Database



Document Pack Page 59

Four times as many men died by suicide compared to females and is consistent with the national and
Greater Manchester picture and 40% of deaths were in people under the age of 40. Inequality in
Trafford is reflected in the suicide rate, with a rate of 9.8 per 100,000 in the most deprived areas
compared to 4.6 per 100,000 in the least deprived. However, the averages are not statistically
significantly different™. In 2017/2018, there were 371 emergency hospital admissions for deliberate
self-harm in Trafford. This is 12.8% lower than age standardised rates for England®. The most
common method of suicide in Trafford was hanging/strangulation. The results of a local audit
conducted in 2015 identified that 89% of people had a physical health problem which is potentially
greater than in Greater Manchester and nationally. However, we should be cautious about drawing

a firm conclusion about this due to small numbers in the Trafford audit potentially inflating trends.

Suicide risk formulation (non-exhaustive)

As outlined above, there are a complex range of inter-related social, interpersonal and individual
factors that contribute to, maintain and exacerbate the risk of suicide. Furthermore, suicidal
thoughts and behaviours exist on a fluid continuum and are important to consider as distinct
opportunities for intervention in order to reduce suicides. Understanding the key risks and
protective factors in relation to suicide can facilitate appropriate, targeted interventions.
Importantly, increasing protective factors at a population level is likely to reduce overall risk through

improvements in mental health and wellbeing.

24
Department for Communities and Local Government, Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) Copyright © 2017, Re-used with the permission
of NHS Digital. All rights reserved.



Document Pack Page 60

/ \ / Individual factors \ / \
Societal factors Being male Relationship factors

Deprivation (e.g. living in north or west of Middle aged Breakdown of relationship
borough) Mental health problems Difficulties in relationships or
Low levels of awareness Financial difficulties e.g. debts conflict
Stigma with help-seeking or insecurity

Loss of or lack of support
Social isolation
Abuse/neglect

Economic problems e.g. unemployment Significant life events
Chronic physical health

Barriers to accessing support e.g. gaps
problems/pain

between primary & secondary care

Exposure to suicidal behaviour e.g. media/ Manual occupation \ /

\ Previous suicide attempt

\ Substance misuse

( Protective factors \ ( \

Reasons for living Impact on individual Maintenance fat?tors
Access to healthcare e.g. feeling anxious, stressed, e.g. Substance misuse
Physical activity/healthy lifestyle depressed, worthless, N Self-harm
Connectedness to others overwhelmed, unable to cope, Isolate self/withdraw
Supportive school or work environment hopeless, trapped Self-blame '
Religious participation Low support/connection

Employment / \_ I J

Increasing severity

-

s
|

.

Suicidal Self-harm Suicidal Access to Suicide Completed
ideation/thoughts intent means attempt suicide
Impact on relationships and community /




Document Pack Page 61

National strategic approach

Reducing the number of suicides remains a key priority for the NHS over the next decade®. In 2016,
The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health document outlined a plan to reduce the suicide rate
by 10% by 2020/21 and progress continues to be made toward this goal“. The National Suicide
Prevention Strategy (2012, updated 2017) and Cross-Government Suicide Prevention Workplan
(2019) identified six key priorities for suicide prevention nationally (see below) which are reaffirmed
by the NHS Long Term Plan, in particular the importance of post-crisis support for families and staff
that are bereaved by suicide and whom are at heightened risk themselves. These priorities have

been used as a basis for developing Trafford’s priorities and action plan.

National priorities

1) Reduce suicide in high risk groups e.g. middle aged men, people in the care of mental health
services, people in contact with the criminal justice
system, specific occupational groups such as doctors,
nurses, veterinary workers, farmers and agricultural
workers, people with a history of self-harm

2) Tailor approaches to improve e.g. reducing inequalities, support for veterans, the LGBT

mental health in specific groups population and young people
3) Reduce access to means of suicide
4) Provide better information and
support to those bereaved or
affected by suicide

5) Support the media to deliver
sensitive approaches to suicide and
suicidal behaviour

6) Supporting research data collection e.g. engaging coroners

and information

Greater Manchester strategic direction

The Greater Manchester strategic priorities are consistent with national priorities and are based on a
whole systems approach focussing on eight priority areas identified within the recent Public Health
England guidance for local suicide prevention plans *>. The Greater Manchester plan emphasises

targeting the groups identified by Greater Manchester intelligence and audit that are at highest risk

» Appleby,L (2016) ‘Priorities for Suicide Prevention action plans’ in Local Suicide Prevention Planning — A Practical
Resource. Public Health England



Document Pack Page 62

of suicides deemed to be the most preventable such as people in mental health services, people

with depression and people with a history of self- harm (see table below). It also emphasises the

importance of setting up and utilising a ‘real time’ data approach to suicide intelligence that would

allow for more timely identification of suicide and quicker support to those affected e.g. to

bereavement support.

Greater Manchester priorities

1.

Reducing the risk in
men

Preventing and
responding to self-
harm

Children, young
people and women
during pregnancy
and postnatally
Treating Depression
in Primary Care

Acute Mental Health
Care Settings
Tackling High
Frequency Locations
Reducing Isolation
and Loneliness

Bereavement
Support/Postvention

In particular middle aged men, with a focus on economic disadvantage
such as debt and or unemployment, social isolation and drugs and
alcohol misuse. A focus on developing treatment and/or support
settings that are more acceptable and accessible by men

A range of services are needed for adults and young people in crisis, and
psychological assessment for self-harm patients. Acknowledgement that
support for young people will be distinct from that of adults.

Joint working between health, social care, schools and youth services,
and includes risk during pregnancy and those who have given birth
during the last year. In particular we intend to focus on the increased
suicide risk between 15 to 19 year olds.

Safe prescribing of painkillers and anti-depressants, (plus skilling up
primary care practitioners in identification and initial management of
risk)

Safer wards and safer discharge (including follow up), adequate bed
numbers and no out of area admissions.

Including working with local media organisations and groups to prevent
imitative suicides

For example, through community based support, good transport links
and by working with the third sector with a particular focus on men and
older people

The provision of better information and support for those bereaved or
affected by suicide and supporting the media in delivering sensitive
approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour

Key priorities for Trafford

This suicide prevention strategy forms part of a broader approach for mental health in Greater

Manchester and Trafford. Given the complex and inter-related social, interpersonal and individual

factors that contribute to, maintain and exacerbate risk, a whole systems approach is crucial. In

Trafford, we take a life course approach to intervention through the ‘start well’, ‘live well’ and ‘age

well’ themes and the suicide prevention strategy will span across these. Our overarching priority is

to reduce suicides by at least 10% (approximately 1 person per year by 2020). We will achieve this by

10



Document Pack Page 63

focussing on objectives that sit within the eight priority areas (see above) identified within the Public

Health England guidance for local suicide prevention plans and subscribed to in the Greater

Manchester suicide prevention plan.

Trafford priorities Rationale Focus
1. Reducing the The majority of - Middle aged men
risk in Men suicides in - Focus on economic disadvantage such as debt and or
Trafford are male unemployment, social isolation and drugs and
alcohol misuse
- Afocus on developing treatment and/or support
settings that are more acceptable and accessible by
men
2. Preventing and Self-harm is a - Mental health crisis support e.g. through Mental
responding to significant risk Health Liaison service and timely assessment for
self-harm factor for suicide adults and young people who self-harm
- Primary Care Mental Health & Wellbeing Service will
provide appropriate support to people not under the
care of secondary mental health services
- Acknowledgement that support for young people
will often be distinct from that of adults
- Support during transition from child to adult services
and into early adulthood remains an important
endeavour
3. Improving Suicide remains - Joint working between health, social care, schools
mental health of second most and youth services, and includes risk during
children, young  common cause of pregnancy and those who have given birth during
people and death in young the last year
women during people - In particular we intend to focus on the increased
pregnancy and suicide risk between 15 to 24 year olds
postnatally
4. Reducing mental - Continue to work with neighbourhoods to maximise

distress and
improving
mental
wellbeing and
resilience

existing strengths and community resources using an
asset based approach

Access to help and support early to mitigate impact
Safe prescribing of painkillers and anti-depressants
Skilling up primary care practitioners in the
identification and initial management of risk
Encourage primary care practitioners to link to the
Primary Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service
when identifying mental health issues or factors
impacting on mental health (e.g. debts, housing)
Increase identification of depression in older people
and increase referral and uptake of talking therapies
offered by Trafford Psychological Therapies Service
Increasing physical activity

Increasing timely access to mental health services
Safer wards and safer discharge (including follow up
Adequate bed numbers and no
unnecessary/inappropriate out of area admissions or

11



Document Pack Page 64

Reducing
inequalities

Improving
mental health of
people with long
term physical
health
conditions
Reducing
isolation and
loneliness
Bereavement
support

Trafford has high
inequality with
residents in the
most deprived
areas of Trafford
most at risk of
suicide

Physical health
problems are a
key risk factor for
suicide

Social isolation is
a key risk factor
for suicide

placements

Continuing to address poverty in Trafford
Striving to reduce unemployment
Attracting employers that pay a living wage

Ensure people are supported to manage their
condition and any pain appropriately

Utilise social prescribing to enhance quality of life
Regular condition and medication reviews

Increase access to psychological therapies for people
with long term conditions

Working collaboratively with community based
support and the third sector

Access to good transport links

The provision of better information and support for
those bereaved or affected by suicide

Supporting the media in delivering sensitive
approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
Real-time data surveillance approach to support a
timely offer of bereavement support

12



Action Plan for Trafford (based around the Nine Pillars of the Suicide Safer Communities26)

Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
1 Establish Establish Suicide Prevention Partnership Group Suicide Prevention 31° August  Initial
leadership and Partnership Group. 2019 meeting
governance Link to Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board via Trafford’s Mental Health Members will 6™ August
arrangements Partnership (CCG) include people with 2019
lived experience,
Provide regular updates to the Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board voluntary sector
groups, health
providers e.g. GP,
local emergency
workers, housing
and commissioners
2 A robust This strategy & action plan draws on data from the 2015 Trafford audit of
background suicides completed as part of the 2015 Greater Manchester audit
summary of local
area to support goal We will support an annual Greater Manchester suicide audit. When this is Public Health Team,
setting completed, Trafford data will be extracted and analysed to inform learning Trafford Council Annually
We will attend the Shining a Light on Suicide Launch event for Greater
Manchester to share learning, good practice and strengthen links between Public Health Team, = May 2019 Attended

agencies

Trafford Council

2 LivingWorks Education (2017). Suicide-safer communities: A designation recognizing community commitments to suicide-safety.

13

G9 abed »ord uawnoog



Pillar

Action

Who?

Timescale

Update(s)

3 Raise awareness

of suicide and self-
harm prevention in
the community

We will attend the Greater Manchester Suicide Bereavement Conference in
April 2019

We will work with Greater Manchester on the Suicide Prevention Campaign
2019 “Shining a light on suicide” and highlight this locally e.g. through email
footers, posters, leaflets, twitter and the council website. This campaign
addresses common misconceptions by highlighting that suicide is preventable
and that ‘It is okay to ask about suicide’ and this does not increase risk.

We will establish a network of suicide prevention ‘Champions’ to advocate for
suicide prevention within their work/services and disseminate key messages
and support available.

We will raise public awareness of suicide prevention and reduce stigma e.g.
through supporting national campaigns e.g. World Suicide Prevention day
(10" Sep 2019 — theme is suicide prevention), World Mental Health Day (10™
Oct 2019), The Campaign Against Living Miserably (CALM), Papyrus
(Prevention of Young Suicide), Alright Mate, It’s OK to Talk and Time to Talk
Day. We will continue to organise Grief café/death café events in Trafford to
encourage open communication around mental health and wellbeing. We will
also support university mental health and wellbeing initiatives.

We will utilise local newsletters e.g. Staff news emails to disseminate key
events, suicide prevention work happening in the borough and training
opportunities.

Public Health Team,
Trafford Council

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Suicide Prevention

Partnership Group —

communications
teams

April 2019

Ongoing

31°" August

2019

Ongoing

Ongoing

Attended

Included in
Council
Staff
Newsletter
on 21%

14

99 afed 3oed Juswnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
June 2019
We will collect data on locations in Trafford where incidents of suicide occur.  The Greater Ongoing 12 month
This will support identification of high risk (>1 occurrence) locations. If a high Manchester Real- pilot
risk location is identified we will work with individuals/agencies that manage Time Suicide Data begun in
the location to reduce/prevent further incidents of suicide at that location e.g. pathway will collect June 2019
through use of Samaritans publicity. We will also use this data to action a and provide the data
suitable, rapid support response at a system level such as for schools or to Trafford
workplaces.
Partners such as 42" Street, Papyrus, Talk Shop and Youth Offending Service Listed.partner Ongoing
will continue to raise awareness of mental health problems and suicide agencies
prevention through training to own staff and staff working with Children &
Young People in mental health services, schools, colleges and universities.
The Department for Work & Pensions will continue to provide mental health Department for Ongoing
awareness sessions for their staff. Work & Pensions
. . . . . Greater Manchester .
Greater Manchester Police will continue to assist with mental health calls and Police Ongoing
ensure information is shared with relevant people to obtain appropriate
support within 24 hours.
4 Increase mental We will increase and promote mental wellbeing through reducing health Trafford Council (in Ongoing
health and wellness inequalities, promoting a healthy lifestyle and maximising connections within  line with Strategic
promotion communities. We will strive to cultivate a culture of hope and maintain Outcomes)
awareness that we are all vulnerable to mental health difficulties.
We will continue to foster good inter-agency working in Trafford. All Stakeholders Ongoing

15

19 abed 3oed uswnosog



Pillar

Action

Who?

Timescale Update(s)

The New Primary Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service (PCMHWB) in
Trafford will provide an integrated, whole systems approach for individuals
with inter-related health and social problems (e.g. debt, employment,
housing) in the community through integrated assessment and holistic and
integrated support. The service will also support referral and signposting to
services that can support with suicide bereavement.

The Primary Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service will also support links
between people and their communities through a social prescribing model.
This has the potential to further increase awareness not just through
practitioners and services but throughout communities.

The opportunity for support and intervention through pharmacy staff will also
be maximised as they form a key part of community resource that is often
well used and well connected.

We will support the recognition of depression in Primary Care, particularly for
Older Adults and increase appropriate referrals and uptake of Psychological
Therapies through the Trafford Psychological Therapies service.

The Greater Manchester I-THRIVE programme will continue to promote and
provide children and young people with psychological support through health
services (e.g. Healthy Young Minds), schools and early help hubs, reducing
stigma and improving emotional wellbeing for young people.

We will support the Greater Manchester Parent Infant Mental Health

Primary Care Mental
Health and
Wellbeing Service

Primary Care Mental
Health and
Wellbeing Service

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Primary Care
Practitioners

Greater Manchester
I-THRIVE

Greater Manchester

Ongoing 12-month
pilot
began 1%
April 2019

Ongoing

Sep 2019

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

16

g9 afed 3oed Juswnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
Programme to promote mental well-being in the perinatal period and beyond. Parent Infant Mental
Health
5 Training for We will mandate an e-learning package on suicide prevention for all council Public Health Team August
community staff and CCG staff to increase recognition of signs, increase awareness and & Learning and 2019
members, lay encourage active signposting and support. We will monitor take-up of the Development Team,
persons and online e-learning package and develop a schedule for refresher training. Trafford Council
professionals in
identifying and We will mandate an e-learning package on Mental Health Awareness in the Public Health Team August
supporting people Workplace for Council and CCG staff with managerial responsibilities. We will & Learning and 2019
with suicidal monitor take-up of the online e-learning packages and develop a schedule for  Development Team,
ideation refresher training. Trafford Council
We shall continue to provide training for primary care staff (e.g. GPs, Suicide Prevention Ongoing
receptionists, practice managers etc.) on presentation of distress and Partnership Group
identification of risk, especially in men and older adults and ensure an ‘every
contact counts’ approach.
Develop awareness of signs of suicidal ideation for staff groups that have Suicide Prevention Ongoing
contact with public through online training e.g GP receptionists, pharmacists,  Partnership Group
DWP staff, housing groups, ambulance & contact centre staff, link workers in
PCMHWS; homeless teams; foodbank staff; youth services; security staff and
hotel workers.
Trafford Psychological Therapies Service will continue to provide mental Trafford Ongoing

health awareness training to non-clinical staff.

Psychological
Therapies Service

17

69 abed 3oed Juswnoog



Pillar

Action

Who?

Timescale Update(s)

Promote Mental Health First Aid Training within Trafford potentially through a
train the trainer approach.

We will continue to support existing mental health in schools training
initiatives.

We will promote the ‘Suicide — Let’s Talk’ 20-minute training developed in
Greater Manchester as part of the Shining a Light on Suicide Campaign to the
public through outward facing communication such as the council website
and social media channels.

A scoping exercise will be conducted to investigate what approaches Trafford
council currently use for the appropriate management of council debts e.g.
council tax arrears and red letters to residents. We will strive to reduce the
psychological impact of these practices and ensure people are signposted to
support.

We will develop a written resource specific to Trafford e.g. a ‘Flash Card’ using
clear, descriptive language that outlines support available to people at risk of
suicide and how to refer/access. This will be shared as widely as possible,
especially with frontline staff.

We will promote appropriate sharing of information between agencies to
facilitate learning.

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group
through & Learning
and Development
Team

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group —
communications
team

Public Health Team,
Trafford Council

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Suicide Prevention
Partnership Group

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

August
2019

September
2019

September
2019

Ongoing

18

0/ abed 3oed uawnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
6 Suicide We will promote the overarching principles of person centred care in clinical Suicide Prevention Ongoing
intervention and services including; curious questioning, maximisation of control and choice, Partnership Group
ongoing clinical flexible intervention to meet person’s needs (not a ‘one size fits all’ approach),
support services the importance of early intervention, the importance of the person in context
e.g. community resources, the use of evidence based interventions and
effective risk assessment and management.
We shall continue to demonstrate a proactive approach in in-patient and Suicide Prevention Ongoing
mental health services in Trafford e.g. through safer wards, early follow up Partnership Group
after discharge, no inappropriate out of area admissions. Awareness that
people presenting with low mood may require more active support to engage
with services will be key. The impact of these interventions will continue to be
monitored.
We will continue to maximise opportunities for support by providing a range Suicide Prevention Ongoing
of access options including face-to-face, online and telephone support. Partnership Group
Trafford Psychological Therapies service will continue to provide timely Trafford Ongoing
support for people with mental health problems in primary care. This service Psychological
will continue to offer support to staff affected by suicide. Therapies Service
We shall continue to provide a Mental Health Liaison service within A&E to Mental Health Ongoing
Trafford residents for urgent, timely support for people experiencing a crisis. Liaison service
We will develop ways of working with men that recognise and build on Suicide Prevention
existing skills and values. Partnership Group
Ensure services that come into contact with people at high risk e.g. drug and Suicide Prevention September

19

T/ abed 3oed uswnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
alcohol services, debt services and mental health services have suicide Partnership Group 2019
reduction strategies in place and appropriate monitoring.

We will maintain good awareness of support available and identify Suicide Prevention Ongoing
inappropriate support or gaps in provision. Partnership Group

We will support the inclusion of questions regarding mental health/suicidal Suicide Prevention October
ideation as part of initial tenancy interviews completed by housing groups Partnership Group 2019
(e.g. Irwell Valley Homes and Your Housing Group) and ensure staff are aware

of support available to signpost to.

We will work with local GPs to more readily use the PHQ9 Q9 for groups not o .

presenting with typical symptoms of low mood e.g. frequent attenders with Suicide Prevention October
non-specific symptoms such as aches and pains or people living with chronic ~ Partnership Group 2019
pain.

We will continue to provide prgaFtive 'medicine'man'agement incl'uding.for Trafford CCG Ongoing
high risk groups such a people living with chronic pain and/or taking opiate

medications.

7 Suicide We will continue to work with Greater Manchester to support the new Suicide Suicide Bereavement Service

bereavement Bereavement Information Service; ensuring local service information is up-to-  Partnership Group to launched

support and date and accessible. Our existing service provision in Trafford is not specificto work with Paul 1* May

resources suicide bereavement. However, existing services are able to offer support for ~ Barber in GM 2019

bereavement and related difficulties. The Trafford Wellbeing Counselling
Service based at the Macmillan Wellbeing Centre can offer bereavement
counselling to people who are bereaved by suicide. Furthermore, the Primary
Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service could provide an initial point of
contact through a link worker who is able to co-ordinate and signpost to

20

z/ abed 3oed uswnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale Update(s)
relevant services on an individual basis.
We will ensure local police e.g. family liaison officers are aware of the Suicide  Public Health Team,  Pilot began
Bereavement Information Service and relevant contacts and provide Trafford Council in June
resources as needed e.g. ‘Help is at Hand’ booklets. 2019 and is
ongoing for
12 months
We will continue to work with Greater Manchester to pilot a real-time suicide  Suicide Prevention Ongoing
data pathway through working jointly with the local coroner. This enables Partnership Group —
rapid identification of suicides and suspected suicide clusters and facilitatesa  communications
proactive approach to suicide bereavement support. teams
We will continue to work with Greater Manchester to encourage sensitive and  Suicide Prevention Ongoing
responsible reporting of suicide in the media and promote adherence to the Partnership Group —
Samaritans Media Guidelines in relation to coverage of suicide and self-harm.  communications
We will also ensure appropriate links to support are offered alongside articles  teams
related to suicide.
8 Evaluation Annual audit data of completed suicides and deaths of undetermined intent Suicide Prevention Ongoing
measures including  will help us to learn from incidences of suicide in Trafford and ensure Partnership Group
data collectionand  recommendations are being implemented.
evaluation (audit)
We will continue to analyse data on admission rates to hospital with Public Health Team,  Ongoing
deliberate self-harm. Trafford Council
Improvement in identification rates of depression in older adults Trafford CCG Ongoing
Completion rates for treatment of depression in primary care Trafford CCG Ongoing

21

¢ abed 3oed Juswnoog



Pillar Action Who? Timescale  Update(s)
We will use real-time data on locations of suicides to inform our Public Health Team,  Ongoing Pilot
understanding of high risk locations in Trafford (>1 incidence of suicide) and Trafford Council begun
any interventions necessary to reduce risk at these locations. June 2019

9 Build Reduce socio-economic inequality; continue to improve housing security and Public Health Team,  Ongoing

sustainability in the  affordability; increase job security; provide a living wage; strive to reduce Trafford Council

community Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs); consider building design in town
planning; maintain green spaces and ‘open air’ in Trafford, continue to strive
for greater community engagement and cohesion, work collaboratively with
other initiatives in Trafford to reduce social isolation, increase parity of
physical and mental health services.

Develop a poverty strategy for Trafford Public Health Team,  Ongoing
Trafford Council
We will work with our community and voluntary organisations to raise Trafford Suicide Ongoing
awareness of suicide risk and crucially, the help and support available in .
ford Prevention
Traftor Partnership
Governance

The suicide and self-harm prevention strategy directly aligns with the key aim of the Trafford Health and Wellbeing Strategy to increase healthy life

expectancy and reduce inequalities. The strategy will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board for comment and support.

22

¥/ abed 3oed usawnoog



Document Pack Page 75

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Date: 26™ September 2019

Report for: Information

Report of: Public Health/Partnerships and Communities
Report Title

An update on work to tackle period poverty in Trafford

Summary

This report provides an update on the work being undertaken to tackle period poverty in
Trafford.

Recommendation(s)

To note the information in the report

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Sarah Grant, ext 3881 / Helen Gollins, ext 4276



Document Pack Page 76

1. Introduction

The work on tackling Period Poverty in Trafford commenced when a group of Councillors with an
interest in the topic area wished to carry out a piece of work and contacted the Public Health team
for assistance.

This report provides an update of the work undertaken so far and the next steps.
2. Understanding Period Poverty in Trafford

The Public Health team prepared a briefing to provide an overview of the picture of period poverty
in Trafford and examples of best practice elsewhere.

Using data from a survey held by Plan International UK where a weighted sample of girls aged 14
to 21 were asked questions surrounding Period Poverty, it was estimated that approximately 950
girls within the 14 to 21 age range in Trafford would be affected. When compared to ward-level
Index of Multiple Deprivation scores, it was indicated that Bucklow-St Martin’s and Clifford wards
were most likely to have people affected by period poverty.

During November/December 2018, a survey was circulated to all schools in Trafford to gain a
better understanding of the actual situation of period poverty in the borough. Of 85 schools, 16
responded to the survey, with a balance between primary and secondary schools in addition to
two anonymous ones.

Only two of the 16 schools reported having pupils impacted by period poverty, with an
approximated total of 95 pupils between them. The low response rate to the survey, and the small
number of schools identifying this as an issue, may indicate that period poverty is a minor issue in
Trafford. Equally, it could indicate a societal taboo regarding period poverty and students not
using this as a reason for absence, or a lack of knowledge surrounding period poverty.

The survey also indicated that all schools that responded had provisions of sanitary products
available for pupils; the majority of schools provided products for free, however, some schools
charged an average of £1.50 per product.

Many respondents requested support for more sanitary products to be available to schools in
order to support students.

Members of the Public Health team, Partnerships and Communities team and Democratic
Services team met with the Councillors to discuss how we could launch a period poverty campaign
in the borough.

3. Red Box Project

In February 2019, members of the Public Health team, Partnerships and Communities Team,
School Nursing team and Democratic Services team met with the Volunteer Coordinator for the
Trafford Red Box Project with the aim of working in partnership.

The Red Box Project is an initiative which provides schools with a box containing items such as
sanitary products, clean underwear, and other useful items. Most products are donations and the
Volunteer Coordinator collects donations and distributes them to the participating schools.



Document Pack Page 77

As a result of these conversations, a donation bin was set up at Trafford Town Hall for Council
staff to donate products, whilst work was done to identify schools which could be provided with red
boxes.

4. Aspirations
Trafford’s aspirations for tackling period poverty were agreed as:

e Provision of free sanitary products to be offered in all schools in Trafford

e Free sanitary products to be offered to new mothers via the Health Visiting Team

e Free sanitary products to be available in libraries and Early Help Hubs for general
accessibility

e All Food Banks could provide sanitary products to those requiring it

5. Funding

In order to achieve these aspirations, funding would be required for donation bins, red boxes,
initial provision of products, publicity and a launch event.

A proposal was taken to by the Health Scrutiny Committee to the Executive who agreed that
funding should be allocated to this initiative.

£2,000 was identified within Partnerships and Communities to support the initiative; this was
agreed by the Executive Member for Partnerships and Communities at the time.

£200 of this funding has been spent so far on publicity items to use at a future launch event, and
on red boxes which have been provided to organisations working with Care Leavers (see below).

6. Current Situation

The launch of the initiative in Trafford and the provision of sanitary products to all schools relies
heavily on the Red Box Project Volunteer who collects and distributes the donations. Unfortunately
this post is now vacant which has hindered the progress of the initiative however the following
actions are being taken:

e The Partnerships and Communities Team are working with the Red Box Project UK Head
Office and Thrive Trafford to advertise the volunteering post in order to recruit another
Volunteer Coordinator

e All schools in Trafford are being contacted to understand which schools currently have a
Red Box and which schools would like a Red Box. We will work with those who have an
existing box to ensure donations are provided via the School Nursing team in absence of a
Red Box Volunteer Coordinator

e A donation bin has been organised for Trafford Town Hall and donation bins will also be
placed in the following locations over the next couple of months: Sale Point (Trafford
Housing Trust), Limelight, Sale Waterside and Irwell Valley.

e Pure Innovations and the Care Leavers Team are using the donations from the donation bin
at the Town Hall to hand out provisions to Care Leavers from Trafford

e Donations from the Town Hall are also being used by Stretford Foodbank who will be
providing a red box to so products are freely accessible to those who need them

A launch event will be organised once a Red Box Project Trafford Volunteer Coordinator is
recruited.



Document Pack Page 78



	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	Health Scrutiny Extraordinary Meeting Draft Minutes 24.07.2019

	6 Psychological Therapies for Mental Health Conditions - Spotlight on Provision in Trafford
	PowerPoint PDF ModernGov

	7 Trafford Suicide Prevention Action Plan and Strategy
	Trafford Suicide Prevention Plan 2019_2ndJuly2019_

	8 An update on work to tackle period poverty in Trafford

